
 
(*) Permanent Membership 

 

 
County Offices 

Newland 
Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 

 
3 June 2013 

 

Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 
 

A Meeting of the Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board will be held on 
Tuesday, 11 June 2013 at 2.00 pm in Committee Room One, County Offices, 
Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL  
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Tony McArdle 
Chief Executive 
 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD (*) 
 
Lincolnshire County Council:  Councillors: Mrs P A Bradwell (Executive Councillor 
for Adult Care and Health Services, Children's Services), Mrs S Woolley (Executive 
Councillor for NHS Liaison, Community Engagement), C N Worth (Executive 
Councillor for Libraries, Heritage, Culture), D Brailsford, Mrs J P Churchill, 
B W Keimach, Mrs A M Newton and C R Oxby 
 
Lincolnshire County Council Officers: Debbie Barnes (Executive Director of 
Children's Services), Glen Garrod (Director of Adult Social Services) and Dr Tony Hill 
(Director of Public Health) 
 
District Council: Vacancy (1) 
 
GP Commissioning Group:  Dr Vindi Bhandal (South West Lincolnshire CCG), Dr 
Kevin Hill (South Lincolnshire CCG), Dr Sunil Hindocha (Lincolnshire West CCG) and 
Dr Simon Lowe (Lincolnshire East CCG) 
 
Healthwatch Lincolnshire: Mr Preston Keeling (Healthwatch Lincolnshire) 
 
NHS Commissioning Board:  Mr David Sharp (NHS Commissioning Board) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

LINCOLNSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD AGENDA 
TUESDAY, 11 JUNE 2013 

 
 

Item Title Pages Estimated 
Time 

 
1.  Election of Chairman  

 
 

 2.05 pm 

2.  Election of Vice-Chairman  
 
 

 2.10 pm 

3.  Apologies for Absence/Replacement Members  
 
 

  

4.  Declarations of Members' Interests  
 
 

  

5.  Minutes of the meeting held on 13 March 2013  
 
 

 2.15 pm 

6.  Action Updates from previous meeting  
 
 

 2.20 pm 

7.  Chairman's Announcements  
 
 

 2.30 pm 

8.  Decision/Authorisation Items  
 
 

  

8.1  Health and Wellbeing Boards Terms of 
Reference (TOR) and Operating Procedures   
(To receive a report from Martin Wilson (Health 
and Wellbeing Board Advisor), which invites the 
Board to agree the Terms of Reference and 
Operating Processes for the year 2013/14) 
 

1 - 22 2.40 pm 

8.2  Disabled Children's Charter   
(To receive a report from Meredith Teasdale 
(Assistant Director of Children's Services), which 
invites the Board to sign up to the Disabled 
Children's Charter that has been developed by the 
organisation 'Every Disabled Child Matters') 
 

23 - 50 2.55 pm 



Item Title Pages Estimated 
Time 

 

9.  Discussion/Debate Items  
 
 

  

9.1  Health and Wellbeing Board - Development 
Tool   
(To receive a report by Martin Wilson (Health and 
Wellbeing Board Advisor), which invites the Board 
to discuss and agree a national tool to assess their 
progress, using indicators of good practice, on how 
the Board has and can progress to achieve the 
outcomes agreed within the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy)    
 

51 - 58 3.05 pm 

9.2  Lincolnshire Public Health Annual Report 2012   
(To receive a report from Dr Tony Hill (Director of 
Public Health), which invites the Board to receive 
and discuss the recommendations included in each 
chapter of the Lincolnshire Public Health Annual 
Report 2012)  
 

59 - 92 3.35 pm 

10.  Information Items  
 
 

  

10.1 Dementia Strategy Update   
(To receive a report from Glen Garrod (Director of 
Adult Social Services), which invites the Board to 
comment on the Lincolnshire Dementia 
Partnership discussion paper and agree the 
approach to partnership working)  
 

93 - 118 3.45 pm 

10.2 Letter inviting Expressions of Interest for 
Health and Social Care Integration 'Pioneers'   
(To receive a verbal update from Dr Tony Hill 
(Director of Public Health) 
 

 3.55 pm 

11.  Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board - Forward 
Plan Items  
(This item provides the Board with an opportunity to 
discuss potential agenda items for future meetings, 
which will subsequently be included on a Forward Plan 
for the Board.  Martin Wilson (Health and Wellbeing 
Board Advisor) to lead on this item) 
  
 

119 - 120 4.05 pm 

12.  An Action Log of Previous Decisions  
 
 

  



Item Title Pages Estimated 
Time 

 

13.  Future Scheduled Meeting Dates  
(For the Board to note the following meeting dates:- 
Tuesday 11 June 2013, Tuesday 10 September 2013, 
Tuesday 10 December 2013, Tuesday 25 March 2014, 
Tuesday 10 June 2014,Tuesday 30 September 2014, 
and Tuesday 9 December 2014.  All meetings to 
commence at 2.00 p.m.)   
 

 4.25 pm 

 
 
 
 

Democratic Services Officer Contact Details  
 
Name: Katrina Cope 

 
Direct Dial 01522 552104 

 
E Mail Address katrina.cope@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

 

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting 
 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
 
Contact details set out above. 
All papers for council meetings are available on: 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 

 

LINCOLNSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

Open Report on behalf of Dr Tony Hill, Director of Public Health 

 

Report to 
 
Date: 
 
Subject:  

Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
11 June 2013 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board’s Terms of Reference (TOR) 
and Operating Procedures  

 

Summary:  

Terms of Reference and operating processes for Lincolnshire’s Health and Wellbeing 
Board to fulfil its statutory obligations. 
 

 

Actions Required:  

Core members of the Board to agree the Terms of Reference and operating processes for 
the year 2013/14. 
 

 
 
1. Background 

 
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 makes provision for the establishment by the 
Council of a Health and Wellbeing Board which will be an Executive Committee of 
the Council. 

 
Regulations were issued on 8 February 2013 which removed some of the statutory 
requirements relating to committees. 

 
The functions of the Health and Wellbeing Board are set out in Sections 195 and 
196 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 as follows:- 
 

• to encourage persons who arrange for the provision of any health and social 
care services in the area to work in an integrated manner 
 

• provide such advice, assistance or other support as it thinks appropriate for 
the purpose of encouraging Joint Commissioning 

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 1



 

 

• prepare and publish a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  
 

• prepare and publish a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 
It was agreed at Lincolnshire’s full Council meeting on the 22 February 2013 that it 
would establish a Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board with the following 
membership: 
 

• the Council’s Executive Councillors for Health, Housing and Community, 
Adult Social Care and Children’s Services 

• Five further County Councillors 

• the Director of Adult Social Services 

• the Director of Children’s Services 

• the Director of Public Health 

• a designated representative from Healthwatch 

• a designated representative from the NHS Commissioning Board 

• a designated representative from each Clinical Commissioning Group in 
Lincolnshire 

• One District Council representative 
 

At the March meeting it was agreed that the Health and Wellbeing Board Advisor 
would arrange a workshop to look at the draft Terms of Reference, this happened 
by gathering comments from 1-1 meetings with various members of the Board, 
attached to this report is the amended final draft. 

 
2. Conclusion,  
 

The attached draft Terms of Reference are based on national best practice with 
amendments to ensure they reflect the current position in Lincolnshire and it is 
recommended that Board agree the TOR and operating processes  

 
 
3. Consultation,  
 

N/A 
 
 
4. Appendices, 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Terms of Reference and operating processes 

Appendix B Health and Wellbeing agenda process 

Appendix C Health and Wellbeing core members 

Appendix D Part 5 of the Lincolnshire County Council's Constitution 

 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

 
 
5. Background Papers 
 
 No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 

were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

This report was written by Martin Wilson, Health and Wellbeing Board Advisor, who 
can be contacted on 01522-554292 or martin.wilson@lincolnshire.gov.uk  

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

LINCOLNSHIRE HEALTH AND 
WELLBEING BOARD 

 
 
 
 

 

TERMS OF REFERENCE and 
PROCEDURAL RULES 

 

 

June 2013 
 

Page 5



Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 

Terms of Reference and Procedural Rules 

HWB – draft TOR_May13 Page 2 

 

 
 

Terms of Reference 
and Procedural Rules 

Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
 
 

 
1.  Context 

 
 1.1 The full name shall be the Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board. (“The  

Board”). 

 
1.2  The Board is established as a consequence of Section 194of the Health and 

Social Care Act as a committee of Lincolnshire County Council. 
 
2.  Aim 

 
2.1     The Board must, for the purpose of advancing the health and wellbeing of 

the people in its area, encourage persons who arrange for the provision of 
any Health or Social Care services in Lincolnshire to work in an integrated 
manner. 

 
2.2 The Board must provide advice, assistance and support for the purpose of 

encouraging the making of arrangements under section 75 of the National 
Health Service Act 2006 in connection with the provision of such services. 

 
2.3     The Board must encourage those involved in arranging the provision of 
          Health-Related Services to work closely with the Board. 

 
3.       Objectives 

 
3.1     To provide strong local leadership for improvement of health and wellbeing. 
 
3.2  Monitor the implementation and performance of health and wellbeing outcome 

targets defined within the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(JHWS). 

 
3.3  Lead on the production and del ivery of a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment    

(JSNA) and ensure that partner agencies use the evidence base as part of 
their commissioning plans. 

 
3.4  Lead on the implementation of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

(JHWS). 
 
3.5 Confirm and challenge the joint commissioning plans for Health and Social 

care to ensure they meet the needs identified by the JSNA and in line with 
the JHWS. 

 
 

Page 6



Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 

Terms of Reference and Procedural Rules 

HWB – draft TOR_May13 Page 3 

 

3.6 Review any reconfiguration of Health or Social care services in Lincolnshire to 
ensure they support the outcomes of the Joint Health and Wellbeing strategy. 

 
3.7 Maximise opportunities and circumstances for joint working and integration of 

services and make the best use of existing opportunities and processes and 
prevent duplication or omission within Lincolnshire. 

 
4.  Roles and Responsibilities of members of the Board 

 
4.1  To work together effectively to ensure the delivery of the JSNA and JHWS for 

the benefit of Lincolnshire’s communities. 

 
4.2 To work within the Board to build a partnership approach to key issues and 

provide collective and collaborative leadership for the communities of 
Lincolnshire. 

 
4.3 To participate in discussion to reflect the views of their partner 

organisations, being sufficiently briefed and able to make recommendations 
about future policy developments and service delivery. 

 
4.4 To champion the work of the Board in their wider networks and in the 

community. 

 
4.5 To ensure that there are communication mechanisms in place within the 

partner organisations to enable information about the priorities and 
recommendations of the Board to be disseminated and actioned to ensure 
the health and wellbeing of the community of Lincolnshire is improved. 

 
4.6 To promote any consequent changes to strategy, policy, budget and 

service delivery within their own partner organisations to align with the 
recommendations of the Board. 

 
 In particular, it is the Boards expectations that members will act in 

accordance with Board members/champions responsibilities listed at 
Appendix A. 

 
5.  Accountability 

 
5.1 The Board carries formal delegated authority to carry out its functions 

under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 from full Council.  

 
5.2 Core Members bring the responsibility, accountability and duties of their 

individual roles to the Board and provide information, data and consultation 
material, as appropriate, to inform the discussions and decisions. 

 
5.3 The Board will discharge its responsibilities by means of recommendations 

to the relevant partner organisations, who will act in accordance with their 
respective powers and duties to improve the health and wellbeing of the 
population of Lincolnshire. 

 

Page 7



Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 

Terms of Reference and Procedural Rules 

HWB – draft TOR_May13 Page 4 

 

 
5.4 The District Council Core Member will ensure that they keep all Districts 

advised of the work of the Board. 

 

5.5 The Board will report to the Full Council and the NHS Commissioning 
Board via the Local Area Team (LAT) by sending meeting minutes and 
presenting papers as and when requested. 

 

 
5.6 The Board will provide information to the public through publications, local 

media, and wider public activities and by publishing the minutes on the 
Lincolnshire County Council website. 

 
5.7 The members of the Board will also take part in round table discussions with 

the public, voluntary, community, private, independent and NHS sectors to 
ensure there is a ‘conversation’ with Lincolnshire communities about health 
and wellbeing 

 
6.  Membership 
 

6.1  The core membership of the Board will comprise the following:  

• Executive Councillor – Health, Housing and Community, 

• Executive Councillor– Adult Social Care, 

• Executive Councillor– Children’s Services including Adult Education, 

• Five designated Lincolnshire County Councillors,  

• The Executive Director of Public Health, 

•  The Director of Adults Social Services, 

• The Executive Director of Children’s Services, 

• Designated representative from each Clinical Commissioning Group in 
Lincolnshire, 

• Designated NHS Commissioning Board (Local Area Team LAT) 
representa t ive  , 

• One designated District Council representative (representing all seven 
districts),  

• A designated representative f rom HealthWatch  
 
6.2 The Core Members, through a majority vote, have the authority to approve 

individuals as Associate Members of the Board. The length of their 
membership will be for up to one year and will be subject to re-selection at 
the next Annual General Meeting (AGM). 

 
6.3 Each member of the Board can nominate a named substitute. Two working 

days advance notice that a substitute member will attend a meeting of the 
Board will be given the Democratic Services Manager. Substitute members 
will have the same powers as Board members.

Page 8



Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 

Terms of Reference and Procedural Rules 

HWB – draft TOR_May13 Page 5 

 

7. Frequency of Meetings 

 

7.1     The Board will meet no less than four times per year including an AGM.  

 
7.2 Additional meetings of the Board may be convened with agreement of the 

Chairman. 

 
8.  Agenda and Notice of Meetings 

 
8.1 The agenda for each ordinary meeting of The Board will be against the following 

headings: 
 
1. Apologies 

2. Declaration of members interests 

3. Minutes from the previous meetings 

4. Action updates from previous meetings 

5. Chairman’s announcements 

6. Decision/Authorisation items 

7. Discussion/debate items 

8. Information items 

9. The work programme of planned future work 

10. An action log of previous decisions 

11. Date of next meeting 

 
 All papers for The Board to be provided to the Democratic Services Manager of 

Lincolnshire County Council ("the Secretariat") 15 working days before the date 
of the scheduled meeting, with appropriate template short report for the 
appropriate agenda item, for the agenda setting meeting with the Chairman. 
(See process map at Appendix B)  

 
8.2 All finalised agenda items or reports to be tabled at the meeting should be 

submitted to the Secretariat no later than seven work ing days i n  advance 
of  the next meeting. No business wi l l  be conducted that is not on the 
agenda. 

 
8.3 The Secretariat will circulate and publish the agenda and reports at least 

five working days prior to the next meeting. Exempt or Confidential 
Information shall only be circulated to Core Members. 

 
9.  Annual General Meeting 

 
9.1 The Board shall elect the Chairman and Vice Chairman at each AGM, The 

appointment will be by majority vote of all Core Members/substitutes present at 
the meeting and will be for a term of one year. 

 
9.2   The Board will approve the representative nominations by the partner 

organisations as Core Members. 

 

Page 9



Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 

Terms of Reference and Procedural Rules 

HWB – draft TOR_May13 Page 6 

 

10.  Quorum 

 
10.1 Any full meeting of the Board shall be quorate if not less than a third of the 

Core Members are present. This third should include a representative from the 
Clinical Commissioning Groups and a Lincolnshire County Council Executive 
Councillor and either the Chairman or Vice Chairman. 

 
10.2 Failure to achieve a quorum within thirty minutes of the scheduled start of 

the meeting, or should the meeting become inquorate after it has started, shall 
render the meeting adjourned until the next scheduled meeting of the Board. 

 

11.  Procedure at Meetings 

 
11.1 Members of the Public may attend all ordinary meetings of the Board subject 

to the exceptions set out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules 
set out in Part 4 of the Lincolnshire County Council's constitution. 

 
11.2 Only the Core and Substitute Members are entitled to speak through the 

Chairman. Associate Members and the Public are entitled to speak only at the 
invitation of the Chairman. 

 
11.3 With the agreement of the Board, the Board can set up operational/working 

sub-groups to consider distinct areas of work to support the activities of the 
Board. 

 
11.4 The operational/working sub-group will be responsible for arranging the 

frequency and venue of their meetings. 

 
11.5 Any recommendations of the operational/working sub-group will be made to 

the Board who will consider them in accordance with these terms of reference. 
 
11.6 The aim of the Board is to make its business accessible to all members of the 

community and partners with special needs. Accessibility will be achieved in the 
following ways: 

 

• Ensuring adequate physical access to Board meetings, 

• Providing signers, interpreters or other specialist support within existing 

resources on request to the secretariat, 

• To include a work programme of planned future work on the agenda, 

• Reports and presentations are in a style that is accessible to the wider 

community, and of a suitable length, so that their content can be understood, 

• Enabling the recording of meetings to assist the secretariat in accurately 

recording actions and decisions of the Board. 

 
  

Page 10



Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 

Terms of Reference and Procedural Rules 

HWB – draft TOR_May13 Page 7 

 

 
12.  Voting 

 
12.1  Each Core Member and Substitute Member shall have one vote. 

 
12.2 Wherever possible decisions will be reached by consensus. In exceptional 

circumstances and where decisions cannot be reached by consensus of 
opinion, voting will take place and decisions agreed by a simple majority. 
The Chairman will have a casting vote. 

 
12.3 Decisions of the Board will be as recommendations to the partner 

organisations to deliver improvements in the Health and Wellbeing of the 
population of Lincolnshire. 

 
13.  Minutes 

 
13.1 The Secretariat shall minute the meetings and produce and circulate an 

executive summary and action log to all Core Members. 

 
13.2 The Secretariat will send the draft minutes and action log to the Chairman 

within five working days of the meeting for comment. 

 

13.3 The draft minutes, as agreed by the Chairman, will be circulated to Core 
Members. 

 

13.4   Th e  draft minutes will be approved at the next quorate minuted meeting of 
the Board. 

 
13.5  The Secretariat w i l l  publish the minutes, exc lud ing  Exempt  and    

Conf ident ial  Information, on the Lincolnshire County Council website. 

 
14.  Expenses 

 
14.1 The partnership organisation’s are responsible for meeting the expenses of 

their own representatives. 
 
15. 15. 15. 15.     Declarations of Interest     

 
15.1  At the commencement of all meetings Core Members, membe r s  o f  

L i n c o l n s h i r e  Cou n t y  Cou nc i l ,  a n d  n on  c oun c i l l o r s  ( a r e  
t r e a t e d  a s  c o - o p t ed  membe r s  u nde r  S 27 ( 4 )  o f  t h e  Lo c a l i sm  
A c t  20 11  f o r  t h e  pu r p o s es  o f  t h e  a pp l i c a t i o n  o f  t h e  Code  o f  
C ond uc t )  a n d  t h e r e f o r e  a l l  C o r e  membe r s  shall declare any 
interests in accordance with the Member's Code of Conduct which is set out in 
Part 5 of the Lincolnshire County Council's constitution. (see Appendix D) 

Page 11



Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 

Terms of Reference and Procedural Rules 

HWB – draft TOR_May13 Page 8 

 

 
16.  Conduct of Core Members at Meetings 

 
16.1 It is important to ensure that there is no impression created that individuals 

are using their position to promote their own interest, whether financial or 
otherwise, rather than for the general public interest. 

 
16.2 When at Board meetings or when representing the Board, in whatever capacity 

a Core Member must uphold the principles of: 
 

• Selflessness 

• Honesty and Integrity 

• Objectivity 

• Accountability and Openness  

• Respect for Others 

• Cooperation 

 
17.  Review 

 
17.1  The above terms of reference will be reviewed at the AGM or earlier if 

necessary. 

 
17.2  Any amendments shall only be included by unanimous vote. 

Page 12



Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 

Terms of Reference and Procedural Rules 

HWB – draft TOR_May13 Page 9 

 

 

 
Definition 

 
Exempt Information 

Which is information falling within any of the descriptions set out in Part I of Schedule 

12A to the Local Government Act 1972 subject to the qualifications set out in Part II and 
the interpretation provisions set out in Part III of the said Schedule in each case read as 
if references therein to “the authority” were references to “Board” or any of the partner 
organisations. 

 

Confidential Information 
Information furnished to, partner organisations or  the Board  by a government 
department  upon  terms  (however  expressed)  which  forbid  the  disclosure  of  the 
information  to  the  public;  and    information  the  disclosure  of  which  to  the  public  is 
prohibited by or under any enactment or by the order of a court are to be discussed. 

 

Associate Members 
 

Associate Member status is appropriate for individuals wanting to be involved with the 
work of the Board, but who not designated core members are.   The Board  has  the  
authority  to  invite  Associate  Members  to  join  and  approve  their membership   
before  they  take  their  place.  Associate M e m b e r s  will n o t , unless specifically 
requested, be consulted on dates and venues of meetings, but are invited to submit 
agenda items, and have a standing invitation to attend meetings if an issue they are 
keen to discuss is on the agenda.  Associate members will not have voting rights at 
HWBB meetings. 

 

Health Services 
Means services that are provided as part of the health service. 

 

Health-Related Services means services that may have an effect on the health of 
individuals but are not health services or social care services. 

 

Social Care Services 

Means services that are provided in pursuance of the social services functions of local 
authorities (within the meaning of the Local Authority Social Services Act 1970). 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 

Standard agenda item Item detail By When 

1. Apologies 
 

Core members of the 
Board unable to attend 

Two working days before 

Board meeting to 

Secretariat 

 

2. Declaration of members 
interests 

Core members to declare 
any interest against 
agenda items listed 

Either – two working 

days before Board 

meeting, or to Chairman 

on the day of meeting 

 

3. Minutes from the 
previous meeting 

Core members to formally 
amend  and agree formal 
minutes which will be 
placed on LCC website  
 

At meeting 

4. Chairman's 
announcements 

Announcements of local, 
regional or national 
interest to the delivery of 
health and wellbeing in 
Lincolnshire 
 

Two working days before 

Board meeting to 

Secretariat 

5. Decision/Authorisation 
Items 

Forward plan items e.g. 
commissioning plans, 
service re-configurations, 
Healthwatch reports, 
Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment, Joint health 
and Wellbeing Strategy, 
etc 
 

Draft reports 15 working 

days before Board 

meeting to Secretariat for 

an Agenda planning 

meeting 

 

Final reports (including 

any presentation) to 

Secretariat 7 working 

days before Board 

meeting 

 

6. Discussion/ Debate 
items 

Health and wellbeing 
themes ideas, national 
policy changes, items for 
forward plan, etc. 
 
 
 

Draft reports 15 working 

days before Board 

meeting to Secretariat for 

an Agenda planning 

meeting 

 

Final reports (including 

any presentation) to 

Secretariat 7 working 

days before Board 

meeting 

 

 

7. Information items Information items to be Seven working days 

Page 15



[Type text] 

 

Appendix B - LHWB Agenda process_draft May 13 

shared with partner 
agencies from Core 
members 

before Board meeting to 

Secretariat 

 

 
8. Work programme for 

future planned work 

 
Items from Core 
members for discussion 
with Board 
 

 

 

9. Action log of previous 
decisions 

Record of activity of the 
Board and partner activity 
 

 

10. Date of next meeting Dates to be set for full 
year following AGM 
 

 

 

Page 16



Appendix C 

Roles and Responsibilities of Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board  

(HWB) Core Members 

 

 

 
Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board Responsibilities 
 
Key responsibilities of ALL board members: 
 
 

• Agreement of GP Commissioning plans 

• Oversight of Annual Public Health Report/Public Health Issues 

• Agreement of Children’s commissioning plans 

• Oversight of Health Watch Plans/Annual Report 

• Agreement of Adult’s commissioning plans 

• Creation of Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), and the Joint Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) 

• Adhere to the Equalities Duty Act 2010, including the Public Sector Duty 

• Performance and Quality Monitoring 

• Promote integration and partnership across areas 

• Undertake a compliance role in relation to major service redesign  

• Support joint commissioning plans and pooled budget arrangements to meet the 

needs identified by the JSNA and to support the implementation of the Health and 

Well-being Strategy 

• Ensure all commissioning plans have been co-produced 

• Joint health and wellbeing strategy sponsor members of the Board should also  

ensure the strategy is developed according to the direction of the Board and to 

provide assurance to the Board that it is working within agreed timescales 

Page 17



Roles and Responsibilities of Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board  

(HWB) Core Members 

 

Appendix C [MW vers3 – final) Page 2 
 

 
All members of the HWB will be expected to 
 
 

• Represent and speak on behalf of their organisation or sector 

• Be accountable to their organisation or sector when participating in the HWB 

ensure organisations/sector are kept informed of HWB business and that 

information from their organisation/sector is reported to the HWB 

• Support the agreed majority view when speaking on behalf of the HWB to other 

parties 

• Attend HWB meetings or ensure that a named deputy is briefed when attending 

on their behalf 

• Declare any conflicts of interest should they arise 

• Read agenda papers prior to meetings so that they are ready to contribute and 

discuss  HWB business 

• Work collaboratively with other board members in pursuit of HWB business; 

• Ensure that the HWB adheres to its agreed terms of reference and 

responsibilities; 

• Listen and respect the views of fellow Board members; 

• Be willing to take on special tasks or attend additional meetings or functions to 

represent the HWB 

Page 18



Roles and Responsibilities of Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board  

(HWB) Core Members 

 

Appendix C [MW vers3 – final) Page 3 
 

Key roles and responsibilities of individual core board members: 
 

Executive members  

1. Portfolio holder –Health, Housing and  

• Report any issues raised by the public to the Board 

• Report any issues raised by other councillors to the Board 

• Report any issues raised by other members of the Board 

• Provide strategic direction in relation to Lincolnshire's Joint Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy 

• Report publicly on the work and progress of the Board  

• Report to Executive on the work and progress of the Board 

• Promote and ensure co-production of all commissioning plans and proposals 

 
Lincolnshire County Councillors 

 

• Report publicly on the work and progress of the Board 

• Report any issues raised by the public to the Board 

• Report any issues raised by other councillors to the Board 

 

Executive Director for Public Health 

44d 

• Update the Board on public health related activity taking place in Lincolnshire 

• Report to the Board any relevant information provided from Public Health 

England (PHE) and report any relevant board matters to PHE 

• Ensure Lincolnshire is addressing health inequalities and promoting the health 

and wellbeing of all Lincolnshire residents 

• Lead the revision and publication of the JSNA 

• Lead the revision and publication of the Joint Health and Well-being Strategy 

 

Adults and Children’s Directors   
  

• Report on commissioning activity to the Board 

• Provide relevant information requested by the Board 

• Contribute to the creation of the JSNA 

Page 19



Roles and Responsibilities of Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board  

(HWB) Core Members 

 

Appendix C [MW vers3 – final) Page 4 
 

• Have regard to the JSNA and the JHWBS when developing commissioning 

and budget proposals 

• Report Board activity to assistant directors and heads of service 

 
Clinical Commissioning Group representative  

 

• Ensure that the Clinical Commissioning Group members/partners directly feed 

into the JSNA 

• Have regard to the JSNA and the JHWBS when developing commissioning 

and budget proposals 

• Report commissioning activity to the Board 

• Report Board activity to other Clinical Commissioning Group members 

 

Lincolnshire Healthwatch representative 

 

• Reflect the public’s views acting as the patient’s voice to report any issues 

raised by the public to the Board 

• Feedback board response to issues raised and activity undertaken 

• Promote community participation and co-production in support of activity  

• Report on and from Healthwatch England 

• Ensure the Joint health and Wellbeing Strategy reflects the need of 

Lincolnshire’s population 

• Provide reports to the Board on issues raised by providers or the public of 

Lincolnshire 

 

District Council representatives 

 

• Promote the Boards intentions to District Council partners 

• Feedback any issues raised by partner districts or the public to the Board 

 

Local Area Team representative  
 

• Update the board on any national Commissioning issues which will affect 

Lincolnshire’s Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy  

• feedback on any issues raised by the Board affecting Lincolnshire to the NHS 

Commissioning Board 

Page 20



Appendix D 

 
 

SECTION B 

MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
 

PREAMBLE 

 

Lincolnshire County Council Members’ Code of Conduct 
 
The County Council have adopted this Code setting out the expected behaviours 
required of its members or co-opted members, acknowledging that they each have a 
responsibility to represent the community and work constructively with our staff and 
partner organisations to secure better social, economic and environmental outcomes 
for all. 
 
In accordance with the Localism Act provisions, when acting in this capacity all 
Councillors must be committed to behaving in a manner that is consistent with the 
following principles to achieve best value for our residents and maintain public 
confidence in this authority. 
 

 SELFLESSNESS: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the 
public interest.  They should not do so in order to gain financial or other material 
benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. 
 INTEGRITY: Holders of public office should not place themselves under any 
financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to 
influence them in the performance of their official duties. 
 
 OBJECTIVITY: In carrying out public business, including making public 
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and 
benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit. 
 
 ACCOUNTABILITY: Holders of public office are accountable for their 
decisions and actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny 
is appropriate to their office. 
 
 OPPENNESS: Holders of public office should be as open as possible about 
all the decisions and actions that they take.  They should give reasons for their 
decisions and restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly 
demands. 
 
 HONESTY: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private 
interests relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts 
arising in a way that protects the public interest. 
 
 LEADERSHIP: Holder of public office should promote and support these 
principles by leadership and example. 
 

Page 21



Appendix D 

The Act further provides for registration and disclosure of interests and in 
Lincolnshire County Council this will be done as follows: 
On taking up office a member or co-opted member must, within 28 days of becoming 
such, notify the Monitoring Officer of any ‘disclosable pecuniary interests’, as 
prescribed by the Secretary of State. 
 
On re-election or re-appointments, a member or co-opted member must, within 28 
days, notify the Monitoring Officer of any ‘disclosable pecuniary interests not already 
included in his or her register of interests. 
 
If a member or co-opted member is aware that they have a ‘disclosable pecuniary 
interest’ in a matter they must not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter 
at a meeting. 
 
If a member or co-opted member is aware of a ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ in a 
matter under consideration at a meeting but such an interest is not already on the 
Council’s register of interests or in the process of entry onto the register having been 
notified to the Monitoring Officer, the member or co-opted member must disclose the 
‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ to the meeting and register it within 28 days of the 
meeting at which it was first disclosed. 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



 

 
 
 

 
LINCOLNSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Executive Director of Children's Services 

 

Report to 
 
Date: 
 
Subject:  

Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
11 June 2013 
 
Disabled Children's Charter 

 

Summary:  
 
Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to sign up to the Disabled Children's 
Charter that has been developed by the organisation 'Every Disabled Child Matters'.  
Lincolnshire County Council has in previous years agreed to sign up to the Charter and 
work to its principles.  The Charter shows our commitment to disabled children, young 
people and their families. 
 

 

Actions Required:  
 
That the Health and Wellbeing Board agree to sign up to the Disabled Children's Charter 
for Health and Wellbeing Boards. 
 
 

 
1. Background 

 
The Disabled Children's Charter sets out the shared ambition to improve health 
outcomes for a key group of its local population. 
 
Disabled children, young people and their families access services across multiple 
agencies, and therefore are disproportionately affected by poor integration 
between health, social care and education services and a lack of coordinated 
commissioning.  This results in additional financial costs, poor outcomes, 
significant health inequities and considerable distress for children and their 
families.  Health and Wellbeing Boards will play a crucial role in tackling these 
challenges by providing the strategic direction and leadership for local 
commissioners and services. 

Agenda Item 8.2

Page 23



 

 
Signing the Charter will help Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board to articulate 
a vision for improving the outcomes experienced by disabled children and young 
people to the public, commissioners, service providers and local partners including 
Lincolnshire Parent Carer Forums.  It will reassure parent carers that their Health 
and Wellbeing Board will use its influence to ensure the new health system 
delivers for disabled children, young people and their families in their area. 
 
Lincolnshire already meets the Charter which is evidenced below; 
 
1. 'We have detailed and accurate information on the disabled children and 

young people living in our area, and provide public information on how 
we plan to meet their needs'. 
Lincolnshire County Council with partners has agreed the Children with 
Disability Commissioning Strategy which includes a needs assessment and 
how we plan to meet needs. 
 

2. 'We engage directly with disabled children and young people and their 
participation is embedded in the work of our Health and Wellbeing Board'. 
The Shadow Transition Board made up of young people with disabilities 
ensures participation in service delivery and monitoring of services.  This 
includes representation at the Transition Board and provides and conduit for 
the Health and Wellbeing Board to ensure effective engagement and 
participation of children and young people with disabilities. 
 

3. 'We engage directly with parent carers of disabled children and young 
people and their participation is embedded in the work of our Health and 
Wellbeing Board'. 
Parent Carers are engaged in a variety of ways including Parent Carer Forums 
and the Lincolnshire Parent Carer Partnership.  The Health and Wellbeing 
Board utilises this system to ensure engagement and participation of parent 
carers of disabled children and young people in the development and 
commissioning of services. 
 

4. 'We set clear strategic outcomes for our partners to meet in relation to 
disabled children, young people and their families, monitor progress 
towards achieving them and hold each other to account'. 
Lincolnshire's Children with Disability (CWD) Commissioning Strategy set out 
clear strategic outcomes for all partners to meet in relation to disabled children, 
young people and families and progress is monitored on a quarterly basis.  A 
report on progress is taken to Children and Young People Scrutiny Panel 
(CYPSP) on an annual basis. 
 

5. 'We promote early intervention and support for smooth transitions 
between children and adult services for disabled children and young 
people'. 
A range of services for children, young people and their families are provided to 
support early intervention.  Emphasis is also put on smooth transition between 
children's and adult services.  This is monitored by the Shadow Transition 
Board and the local authority Transition Board previously mentioned. 
 

Page 24



 

6. 'We work with key partners to strengthen integration between health, 
social care and education services and with services provided by wider 
partners'. 
There is already good integration between heath, social care and education 
and with wider partners to provide services to children and young people with 
disabilities.  This is regularly reviewed and strengthened further for example, 
integration of all occupational therapists for children is being implemented to 
stop duplication and provide a better integrated service for children and young 
people with disabilities. 
 

7. 'We provide cohesive governance and leadership across the disabled 
children and young people's agenda by linking effectively with key 
partners'. 
Lincolnshire has good governance with a Shadow Transition Board and 
Transition Board that feed into the CYPSP who are represented by the Director 
of Children's Services at the Health and Wellbeing Board.  This, with the CWD 
Commissioning Strategy provides cohesive governance and leadership across 
the disabled children and young people's agenda and ensures effective links 
with partners. 
 

 
2. Conclusion 
 
 Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board already fulfil their commitment to the 

Charter.  It is therefore advised that the Charter is signed to reassure parent carers 
of children and young people with disabilities that we will continue to influence to 
ensure the new health system delivers for disabled children, young people and 
their families in Lincolnshire. 

 
3. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Disabled Children's Charter for Health and Wellbeing Boards 

Appendix B Why sign the Disabled Children's Charter for Health and Wellbeing 
Boards? 

 
 
 
5. Background Papers 
 
 No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 

were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

This report was written by Meredith Teasdale who can be contacted on 01522 
553204 or meredith.teasdale@lincolnshire.gov.uk   

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



!"#$%&'()*+"&(,'-.#)*+$,/',

!"#$%&'()*$'+,$-&((.&/+0$1"'#,2
!"#$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$!"#$%&'#()'*"$$+",(-'./#0)$%&$'())%**#+$*($%),-(.%/0$

*"#$1234%*5$(6$4%6#$3/+$(2*'()#&$#7,#-%#/'#+$85$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/9$5(2/0$,#(,4#$3/+$*"#%-$

63)%4%#&9$%/'42+%/0$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#$:%*"$&,#'%34$#+2'3*%(/34$/##+&$3/+$"#34*"$

'(/+%*%(/&;$<#$:%44$:(-=$*(0#*"#-$%/$,3-*/#-&"%,$:%*"$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#9$

3/+$*"#%-$63)%4%#&$*($%),-(.#$2/%.#-&34$3/+$&,#'%34%&#+$&#-.%'#&9$3/+$#/&2-#$*"#5$-#'#%.#$*"#$

&2,,(-*$*"#5$/##+9$:"#/$*"#5$/##+$%*;$>%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#$:%44$8#$&2,,(-*#+$

&($*"3*$*"#5$'3/$4#3+$(-+%/3-5$4%.#&;

.1'2)#%"'3,%&,('4'1"#0'/5'6,-(,(-'%&"'7&#0%"08'/90'!"#$%&'#()'*"$$+",(-'./#0)'3,$$'

:0/;,)"'";,)"(<"'%&#%=

4;$$<#$"3.#$)"%#,$")'#()'#<<90#%"',(5/0>#%,/($(/$*"#$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$$

5(2/0$,#(,4#$4%.%/0$%/$(2-$3-#39$3/+$,-(.%+#$,284%'$%/6(-)3*%(/$(/$"(:$:#$,43/$$

*($)##*$*"#%-$/##+&

?;$$<#$"(-#-"'),0"<%$1'3,%&'),6#+$")'<&,$)0"('#()'1/9(-':"/:$"$3/+$*"#%-$$

,3-*%'%,3*%(/$%&$#)8#++#+$%/$*"#$:(-=$(6$(2-$?#34*"$3/+$<#448#%/0$@(3-+

@;$$<#$"(-#-"'),0"<%$1'3,%&':#0"(%'<#0"06$(6$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#$

3/+$*"#%-$,3-*%'%,3*%(/$%&$#)8#++#+$%/$*"#$:(-=$(6$(2-$?#34*"$3/+$<#448#%/0$@(3-+

A;$$<#$&#*$<$"#0'6%0#%"-,<'/9%</>"6$6(-$(2-$,3-*/#-&$*($)##*$%/$-#43*%(/$*($+%&384#+$

'"%4+-#/9$5(2/0$,#(,4#$3/+$*"#%-$63)%4%#&9$)(/%*(-$,-(0-#&&$*(:3-+&$3'"%#.%/0$$

*"#)$3/+$"(4+$#3'"$(*"#-$*($3''(2/*

B;$$<#$:0/>/%"'"#0$1',(%"0;"(%,/($3/+$&2,,(-*$6(-$&)((*"$*-3/&%*%(/&$8#*:##/$$

'"%4+-#/$3/+$3+24*$&#-.%'#&$6(-$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$5(2/0$,#(,4#

C;$$<#$:(-=$:%*"$=#5$,3-*/#-&$*($6%0"(-%&"(',(%"-0#%,/($8#*:##/$"#34*"9$&('%34$'3-#$$

3/+$#+2'3*%(/$&#-.%'#&9$3/+$:%*"$&#-.%'#&$,-(.%+#+$85$:%+#-$,3-*/#-&

D;$$<#$,-(.%+#$</&"6,;"'-/;"0(#(<"$3/+$4#3+#-&"%,$3'-(&&$*"#$+%&384#+$'"%4+-#/$3/+$

5(2/0$,#(,4#A&$30#/+3$85$4%/=%/0$#66#'*%.#45$:%*"$=#5$,3-*/#-&

0"1-'()%2                                                                                  !$/'

34#"/"4-5)*+$",)46)7'$&/+)$-()8'&&%'"-1)94$,(:

      

;+')*+"&(,'-.#);,<#/=);$(>4,/+$/2$'$+')/"+'($3*'#/)4$5#"6/,/+0$25&3/'(/2)$2&#6/3&2$
)"$,/2'.(&,$3*/(,#&+$'+,$4"7+0$5&"5(&$'3#"22$)*&$89:$;*&2&$2&#6/3&2$/+3(7,&$
#&*'./(/)')/"+$'+,$2755"#)$!"#$3*/(,#&+$</)*$'3=7/#&,$.#'/+$/+>7#4?$&@5&#)$+7#2/+0$
3'#&$!"#$3*/(,#&+$</)*$3"A5(&@$*&'()*$+&&,2?$'+,$#&2/,&+)/'($&,73')/"+$!"#$575/(2$
</)*$5#"!"7+,$'+,$A7()/5(&$(&'#+/+0$,/!!/37()/&2$')$;*&$B3*""($!"#$C#"!"7+,$
D,73')/"+:$E*'#/)4$#&0/2)#')/"+$+7A.&#F$GHHIJH:$K/+,$"7)$A"#&$'."7)$)*&$<"#L$"!$
;*&$E*/(,#&+M2$;#72)?$;',<"#)*$'))>>>:/+'?+"&(,'-#/,<#/:4,1:<@

AB',2)!"#$%&'()*+"&()C$//',#)DA!*CE$/2$)*&$3'A5'/0+$)"$0&)$#/0*)2$'+,$>72)/3&$!"#$&6&#4$,/2'.(&,$3*/(,:$
N)$*'2$.&&+$2&)$75$.4$!"7#$(&',/+0$"#0'+/2')/"+2$<"#L/+0$</)*$,/2'.(&,$3*/(,#&+$'+,$)*&/#$!'A/(/&2$O$
E"+)'3)$'$K'A/(4?$)*&$E"7+3/($!"#$P/2'.(&,$E*/(,#&+?$Q&+3'5$'+,$)*&$B5&3/'($D,73')/"+'($E"+2"#)/7A:$
DPEQ$/2$*"2)&,$.4$)*&$R')/"+'($E*/(,#&+M2$17#&'7?$E*'#/)4$#&0/2)#')/"+$+7A.&#F$GSHHGS:$ 

F4,)1<"($-?')4-)G''/"-1)/+'#')?4GG"/G'-/#=)H&'$#'),'$()/+')$??4GH$-2"-1)(4?<G'-/5)8+2)#"1-)/+')*+$,/',I)

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29



Commitment 1: We have detailed and accurate information 

on the disabled children, young people and their families 

living in our area, and provide public information on how we 

plan to meet their needs 

 

 

Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Commitment 2: We engage directly with disabled children and 

young people and their participation is embedded in the work 

of our Health and Wellbeing Board 

Page 33



.Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Commitment 4: We set clear strategic outcomes for our 

partners to meet in relation to disabled children, young 

people and their families, monitor progress towards achieving 

them and hold each other to account

Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Commitment 5: We promote early intervention and support 

smooth transitions between children and adult services for 

disabled children and young people 

Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



 
 

 
LINCOLNSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

Open report on behalf of Martin Wilson, Health and Wellbeing Board Advisor 

 

Report to 
 
Date: 
 
Subject:  

Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
11 June 2013 
 
Health and Wellbeing Board – Development Tool 
 

 

Summary:  

Lincolnshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board came into existence on 1 April 2013, this 
national tool allows the Board to assess their progress, using indicators of good practice, 
on how the Board has and can progress to achieve the outcomes agreed within the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 
 
 

 

Actions Required:  
 
The Board to discuss and agree the current position within this assessment and to review 
the progress in March 2014 to inform the 2013/14 Annual Report. 
 
 

 
 
1. Background 

 
Lincolnshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board has been developed after 18 months of 
operating as a ‘shadow’ Board where its structures and hierarchy developed as the 
legal background to their role became clear.  

Agenda Item 9.1

Page 51



It seems then to be an opportune time to assess were the Board currently feels it is 
and what processes, practices and partnerships it needs to improve to deliver an 
improved health and wellbeing for the population of Lincolnshire against five areas 
 

• Strategy, purpose and vision 

• Leadership, values, relationships, ways of working 

• Governance 

• Roles and contributions 

• Measures and accountabilities 

 
In Appendix A, the Health and Wellbeing Board Advisor has highlighted where, in 
his opinion the Board currently sits within this national assessment framework and 
has asked some questions of the Board.  
 

2. Conclusion 
 
 It is important that Lincolnshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board look at its current 

position to assess its strengths and opportunities to improve its effectiveness and 
review, in 2014 whether the Board has been successful with its agreed outcomes 
for Lincolnshire. This development/assessment tool is one way the Board can 
show how well it has achieved its agreed aims and objectives for the population of 
Lincolnshire and also were it has identified areas that will need to be improved. 

  
3. Consultation 
 
 N/A 
 
4. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Lincolnshire’s Development Tool for Health  

Appendix B Development Tool for Health and Wellbeing Boards 

 
 
5. Background Papers 
 
 No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 

were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
 

This report was written by Martin Wilson, Health and Wellbeing Board Advisor, who 
can be contacted on (01522 554292) or martin.wilson@lincolnshire.gov.uk  

Page 52



Appendix A 

Development tool for Health and Wellbeing Boards

Area Now - 2013 In 1 Year In 3 Years Questions for the Board

Strategy, Purpose, 

Vision 1. The board understands its unique potential 

contribution and is ambitious to improve 

health and wellbeing.

1. The board has agreed a realistic set of 

priorities on which to focus its efforts.

1. The board has demonstrated 

achievement against its priorities. The 

board has a track record of enabling 

efficient, effective and integrated re- 

commissioning of service(s).

How will we show improvement?

2. The board has a clear statement of 

purpose and priorities. Existing JSNA 

reviewed and JHWS initiated.

2. JSNA and JHWS formally agreed. 

Individual commissioning plans of CCGs and 

LA align with JSNA/JHWS.

2. JSNA/JHWS embedded in annual plans of 

service providers. JSNA and JHWS reviewed 

and revised and commissioning plans of all 

relevant partners aligned.

Does the Board agree?

3. HWB has a compelling narrative of its 

purpose and ambitions for its local 

community.

3.Partner organisations can describe how 

HWB will make a difference. A shared and 

effective communications plan exists 

(including media handling).

3. Community can describe how HWB has 

made a difference. The board can describe 

what
Does the Board agree?

4. Board members understand the concept of 

shared leadership and communicate 

effectively and respectfully.

4. Trust has been established, constructive 

challenge is the norm, a conflict resolution 

process is in place.

4. Continuous learning (from own 

experiences and from others) is well 

established.

Does the Board agree and how 

do we move to in 1 year?

5. The board has a code of conduct which is 

explicit about expectations of behaviour, and 

which describes the values aspired to. The 

board models appropriate behaviours and 

has an agreement about minimum 

attendance at meetings.

5. The board uses both internal and external 

reviews to test that its code of conduct is 

effective. Board members attend regularly 

and make a positive contribution to meetings.

5. The board’s annual self assessment 

incorporates agreed outcome measures 

against its code of conduct. Stakeholders 

agree that the board operates on a win-win 

basis.

Are the Board comfortable 

about developing review 

programmes?

6. Members have effective working 

relationships and are beginning to influence 

each other’s organisations.

6. Board members look for win-win solutions 

focused on beneficial health outcomes for the 

community. Relationships enable members 

to influence beyond their own organisations.

6. Local organisations seek to contribute to 

the work of the board.
Does the Board agree?

7. The board has interim arrangements in 

place to engage users and the public pending 

the establishment of local Healthwatch.

7. The board empowers the local 

Healthwatch member to act as an 

independent and effective voice for users and 

the public.

7. The board can demonstrate that it has 

considered and acted upon the views of local 

people.

Does the Healthwatch member 

agree?

8. The board understands the needs of 

diverse communities and is clear about its 

responsibilities under Equalities legislation, 

and those of its partners.

8. The board can demonstrate that it 

promotes equality in all its actions including 

consultation, priority setting and service 

improvement, and undertakes equality impact 

assessment on its plans.

8. The board is a beacon of excellence in 

relation to equality and diversity and can 

show positive outcomes for the health and 

wellbeing of minority groups.

Does the Board have 

proposals/plans to be a beacon 

of excellence?

9. The board is clear on accountability for 

decisions and action, and has a scheme of 

delegation.

9. Decision making is clear and transparent, 

and effectively communicated to 

stakeholders and the public.

9. Decisions of the HWB are accepted and 

acted on by all oragnisations in the local 

system.

The Board to review 

communications plan?

10. The board has governance frameworks 

which align with those of the LA and CCGs.

10. Board membership, operational 

structures, and mechanisms for engaging 

partners, are clear.

10. The board has regular updates on the 

priorities of the wider LA, NHSCB and key 

local partners.

The Board Advisor to develop 

structual plans?

11. The relationship between the HWB and 

the LA scrutiny function is clear.

11. The relationship between scrutiny and 

external regulators is agreed and an initial 

effectiveness review has been completed.

11. Scrutiny and regulators work 

constructively with the HWB.

The Board Advisor to develop 

structual plans?

12. An agreement re pooling of resources is 

in place.

12. A risk sharing agreement exists between 

the LA and CCGs.

12. A risk sharing agreement exists between 

the LA, CCGs and other relevant partners.
Does the Board agree?

13. The board knows what each member 

brings in the way of skills, experience, 

knowledge and potential contribution.

13. Each board member has a clear role 

description and acts in accordance with this. 

An annual board development plan has been 

agreed.

13. The board regularly reviews its own 

effectiveness and development needs.

Members roles to be agreed as 

part of the Terms of Reference.

14. The board knows what’s good about its 

existing partnership working and can 

describe what has been successful, what 

hasn't, and why.

14. A stakeholder map exists for external 

partners and each board member has agreed 

partners that they work with proactively. A 

360 degrees feedback survey with partners 

has been completed.

14. A 360 degrees feedback survey is 

completed with stakeholders; with key 

partners; with the public and an appropriate 

action plan developed.

Does the Board agree and are 

they prepared to participate in 

360° survey?

15. The board’s priorities balance 

improvements in service provision with 

improvements in population health and 

wellbeing.

15. The board has an agreed set of outcome 

measures, matched to its priorities.

15. The board’s annual report demonstrates 

achievement of outcomes.
Does the Board agree?

16. The board has reviewed the current 

position as regards service integration, 

population health and use of resources.

16. The board has identified outcomes with 

defined early wins in the areas of:

A) more intergrated and/or personalised 

services;

B) improved popoulation health;

C) better use of resources 

16. The board has achieved defined 

outcomes in the araes of:

 A) more intergrated and/or personalised 

services. 

B) improved population health. 

C) better use of resources, including 

community based assets, and identified early 

wins in reducing health inequalities

Does the Board agree?

17. The board has reviewed its current 

outcomes against its peer group.

17. The board reviews itself regularly against 

benchmarks and adapts plans as necessary.

17. The board consistently performs well 

against benchmarks.
This item is to be reviwed Nationally

Roles and 

contributions

Measures and 

accountabilities

Strategy, Purpose, 

Vision

Leadership, values, 

relationships, ways 

of working

Governance

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



 

 
 
 

 
LINCOLNSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

Open report on behalf of Dr Tony Hill, Director of Public Health 

 

Report to 
 
Date: 
 
Subject:  

Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
11 June 2013 
 
Lincolnshire Public Health Annual Report 2012 

 

 
Summary:  The Annual Report from the Director of Public Health is a statutory report to 
Lincolnshire County Council as it takes on its new public health responsibilities. The report 
raises issues of importance to the health of the population of Lincolnshire. 
 

 

Actions Required:  The Board is asked to receive and discuss the recommendations 
included in each chapter. 
 

 
1. Background:  
 
This is my third Annual Report as Director of Public Health for Lincolnshire, and my 
last to the Board of Lincolnshire Primary Care Trust.  It is, however, of more 
significance to Lincolnshire County Council as it takes on its new public health 
responsibilities and to the four new clinical commissioning groups in Lincolnshire as 
they take on their new statutory duties for commissioning health care.  The next year 
will be a challenging one for all of us, with new responsibilities, new partner 
organisations and a whole new set of opportunities to improve the health and 
wellbeing of the people of Lincolnshire.  This annual report tries to shine a light on 
some of the changes and their implications to help all of us focus on the ways we 
need to work together.  These changes are a big opportunity to improve the way we 
join up our work.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9.2

Page 59



 

2. Conclusion:  
 

The Board is asked to receive a presentation and to discuss the recommendations 
included in each chapter. 

 
   

3. Consultation: 
 

Much of the detail in the report reflects public engagement on the topics discussed. 
The report will also be presented to the Executive of Lincolnshire County Council. 
Many of the recommendations have an implication for other organisations in the 
County. 

 

 
 

4. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Lincolnshire Public Health Annual Report 2012 

 
 
 

5. Background Papers 
 
 No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 

were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

This report was written by Dr Tony Hill, who can be contacted on (01522 552902) 
or (tony.hill@lincolnshire.gov.uk)  
 

Page 60



LINCOLNSHIRE PUBLIC HEALTH  

Annual Report 2012

Page 61



2 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Introduction and Progress on  

Previous Recommendations 03 

Learning Disability Health  

Needs Assessment 05 

  

NHS Health Checks 12 

 

Childhood Obesity 19 

 

Public Health Support to  24 

Clinical Commissioning Groups 

 

Health Protection 27 

Conclusions and  29 

Recommendations  

 

Contents

Page 62



3PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Introduction

This is my third annual report 
as Director of Public Health for 
Lincolnshire, and my last to the 
Board of Lincolnshire Primary 
Care Trust. It is, however, of more 
significance to Lincolnshire County 
Council as it takes on its new public 

health responsibilities and to the four new clinical 
commissioning groups in Lincolnshire as they take on 
their new statutory duties for commissioning health 
care. The next year will be a challenging one for all of 
us, with new responsibilities, new partner organisations 
and a whole new set of opportunities to improve the 
health and wellbeing of the people of Lincolnshire. 
This annual report tries to shine a light on some of the 
changes and their implications to help all of us focus 
on the ways we need to work together. These changes 
are a big opportunity to improve the way we join up 
our work. In the maelstrom of reorganisation we must 
not miss this opportunity. Chapters four and five are the 
main ones for this.

Population needs assessment is not 

highly valued in Lincolnshire, but it is a 

critical component of the commissioning 

cycle. Relying on routine statistics and 

performance data does not measure 

unmet need and you simply get what 

you have always had, although it may 

be better quality or better value for 

money as a result of the commissioning 

activity. To identify and meet unmet 

demand in our communities requires 

painstaking work to look at the whole of 

the population. The Joint Strategic Needs 

Assessment requires some specific and 

focussed work to support the routinely 

collected data. 

Chapter one gives a summary of a 

population needs assessment for people 

with learning disabilities. I hope this 

needs assessment will play a significant 

part in shaping new jointly commissioned 

services for this vulnerable group of 

people.

Page 63



The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

(JHWS) for Lincolnshire places a great 

emphasis on addressing issues in 

systematic ways. A systematic, evidence 

based approach to, for example, cancer 

care, heart disease programmes and 

treatment of stroke has been shown to 

deliver better care and better outcomes. 

Continued improvement to these is the 

objective of theme three in the JHWS. 

The NHS Health Checks programme is 

designed to identify those with some 

long-term conditions earlier than they 

might be found otherwise, so that these 

people can benefit from earlier treatment 

and secondary prevention. Chapter two 

reports on progress with NHS Health 

Checks in Lincolnshire.

The JHWS also identifies childhood 

obesity as a major challenge for 

Lincolnshire. Chapter three explains why 

this is, and tries to outline some of the 

changes that need to happen so that our 

children in Lincolnshire do not grow up 

to be obese adults with all the increased 

risks for cancer, diabetes, heart disease, 

musculoskeletal disease and others. 

The 2011 Annual Public Health Report 

made fourteen recommendations. I think 

it is helpful to report back on how much 

progress has been made against these 

recommendations.

Improved quality of data on the 

demography and health status of 

prisoners – The quality of data has 

recently improved greatly and further 

improvements are being implemented.

Prison healthcare provider to maintain 

disease registers and manage healthcare 

for prisoners on the registers to the 

required standard – Disease registers are 

now in place and disease management 

is improving using an assessment tool 

to identify prisoners with a learning 

disability.

Stress testing of each antenatal and new-

born screening programme to be carried 

out – This has been completed.

Improved quality of data on people who 

do not attend for screening and target 

evidenced based programmes to address 

this – Progress has been made in primary 

care using mosaic profiling within the 

cervical cancer screening programme. 

The service provider of the Diabetic Eye 

Screening Programme has introduced 

new pathways for inviting people to try 

and reduce numbers of the people who 

do not attend.  

Increase screening uptake in areas 

with lowest coverage – The EPOC 

programme is now working to increase 

uptake across all three of the cancer 

screening programmes in areas with the 

lowest coverage across all CCG areas 

as appropriate. They are working with 

staff from the breast and bowel cancer 

screening units locally.

Roll out abdominal aortic aneurysm 

screening across Lincolnshire – This has 

now been agreed and is under way. The 

Service Provider is working closely with 

General Practices and Public Health to 

provide this service for the Lincolnshire 

population. 

Maintain good access to sexual health 

services within 48 hours of appointment 

request – This has proved to be a 

considerable challenge in a wide rural 

county and a fundamental review is now 

under way.

Linking chlamydia screening with wider 

aspects of sexual health – This has been 

achieved

Increase HIV testing in high risk groups 

– Work has commenced with GPs to 

increase awareness of testing, and with 

organisations which already, work with 

the ‘at risk’ groups.

Linking Teenage Pregnancy work with 

wider aspects of sexual health – This has 

been achieved.

Awareness raising in relation to sexual 

assault and rape – The police and the 

Sexual Assault Referral Centre have 

developed a ‘no means no’ campaign, 

which has a variety of ways of delivering 

their key message.

Service redesign of sexual health services 

to meet population needs –  

A fundamental review is now under way.

I would like to thanks staff within the 

Lincolnshire Public Health directorate 

who wrote parts of the report, reviewed 

chapters and proof read. I would 

welcome your comments on the report. 

Dr Tony Hill

Joint Director of Public Health 

NHS Lincolnshire and Lincolnshire  

County Council

4 PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Page 64



5LEARNING DISABILITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Introduction

People with a learning disability tend to 

have worse health than the population 

as a whole, and they are one of the most 

socially excluded groups in society. There 

is evidence indicating greater prevalence 

of specific diseases amongst people with 

a learning disability compared with the 

general population. The learning disability 

definition used for this HNA is given in 

the definitions and clinical signs section 

below. 

NHS and Local Authority Commissioners 

have a responsibility to ensure that 

mainstream health and social care 

services address the needs of people 

with learning disabilities, in addition 

to ensuring that specialist healthcare is 

available for people who require it. This 

HNA aims to support NHS and Local 

Authority Commissioners and their 

providers in delivering their responsibilities 

for the Lincolnshire learning disability 

population.

Aims of the Health Needs 
Assessment

The aims of the HNA were to:

of adults with learning disabilities in 

Lincolnshire;

interventions;

unmet health needs and reduce 

health inequalities.

Methodology

A multi-agency steering group, led by 

the Public Health team, was established 

to oversee the HNA. The group used 

established HNA methodology and 

approaches to carry out the work. This 

included:

health status of the learning 

disability population, and describing 

the effectiveness of services and 

interventions.

epidemiology or service provision with 

other geographical areas.

learning disability service users, service 

providers and other stakeholders.

  

Findings from the Literature 
Review

Definitions and Clinical Signs,

For the purpose of the HNA, the learning 

disability definition in the White Paper, 

Valuing People: A New Strategy for 

Learning Disability for the 21st Century1 

is used. This is that learning disability 

includes the presence of:

a significantly reduced ability to 

understand new or complex information, 

or to learn new skills (impaired 

intelligence), with

independently (impaired social 

functioning),

with a lasting effect on development.

The World Health Organisation 

International Classification of Diseases 

divides learning disability into four main 

categories: mild, moderate, severe and 

profound, depending on the level of 

cognitive impairment.

Causes and Risk Factors

The aetiology of learning disability can 

be subdivided into those conditions 

that arise at conception, and those 

that arise during pregnancy, labour and 

birth. Aetiological agents fall into three 

main categories: genetic, infective and 

environmental. However, no known 

aetiological cause is identified in a high 

proportion of learning disability cases.

Prevention 

Prevention can be divided into primary 

and secondary prevention. Primary 

prevention is the implementation of 

measures to prevent new cases of people 

with learning disabilities. These occur at 

various stages, i.e. prior to conception, 

during pregnancy, during labour and 

after birth.

Learning Disability Health Needs Assessment 

In April 2012, Lincolnshire Public Health published a Health Needs Assessment (HNA) 
for adults with learning disabilities. This chapter of the Annual Report provides outline 
information on some of the findings from the HNA. 

Page 65



6 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CHAPTER 1

 

Policy Context

Valuing People recognised that people 

with a learning disability are among the 

most vulnerable and socially excluded in 

our society. It has six main priority areas, 

one of which is to improve the health of 

people with a learning disability. Valuing 

People Now2 further progressed the work 

of Valuing People, and has an overall 

objective that all people with a learning 

disability receive the healthcare and 

support that they need to live healthy 

lives. 

The Disability and Equality Act 20103 

gives disabled people important rights 

of access to everyday services. Service 

providers have an obligation to make 

reasonable adjustments to their premises 

and/or the way that they provide services.     

A number of high profile reports have 

been published in relation to the health 

of people with learning disabilities. 

Some of these include Equal Treatment 

Closing the Gap4, Promoting Equality5, 

Treat Me Right6, Death by Indifference7, 

Six Lives: The Provision of Public Services 

to People with Learning Disabilities8 and 

Healthcare for All9. Following a BBC 

Panorama programme in May 2011 

about Castlebeck Care Ltd, the Care 

Quality Commission (CQC) developed a 

focussed inspection programme to review 

the care provided by hospitals for people 

with learning disabilities.

Health Needs and Inequalities

A literature review was carried out to 

establish the evidence in relation to 

the mortality and morbidity of people 

with learning disabilities, and how their 

health compares with that of the general 

population. Some of the key findings 

from the literature review include:

a shorter life expectancy compared to 

the general population. The greater 

the level of learning disability, the 

greater the reduced life expectancy.  

in people with learning disabilities 

due to neurological or anatomical 

problems. In Lincolnshire, 2.7% of 

adults with learning disabilities are 

known to have dysphagia, while the 

overall prevalence is 0.8%.

significant burden on people with 

a learning disability, and there is 

significantly greater risk of mortality 

compared to the general population.

people with a learning disability 

is greater than for the general 

population. In Lincolnshire, 26% of 

adults with a learning disability have 

epilepsy, while the overall prevalence 

is 1.4%.

be more prevalent in people with a 

learning disability.

more likely to have poorer oral health 

compared to the general population.

learning disability population are 

known to occur more frequently than 

in the general population.

at greater risk of developing mental 

health and behavioural disorders 

compared to the general population.

  

Page 66



7

 

LEARNING DISABILITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT

is greater in adults with a learning 

disability compared to the general 

population. 

significantly higher in older adults 

with a learning disability compared to 

the general population. 

generally have a poor diet, and a 

high proportion of adults with a 

learning disability do not undertake 

the recommended levels of physical 

activity.

more likely to be obese compared 

to the general population. Those 

at greatest risk include women and 

people with Down’s syndrome.

more frequently exposed to factors 

that are associated with poor health, 

such as poverty, poor housing and 

unemployment. 

As part of the Quality and Outcome 

Framework (QOF), general practices are 

required to maintain a register of adults 

with a learning disability. In 2010/11, 

there were 2685 people in Lincolnshire 

on the learning disability register. This 

represents a prevalence of 0.45%, which 

is close to the England (0.43%) and East 

Midlands (0.47%) prevalence. Figure 

1.1 shows the variation in prevalence 

amongst the general practices in 

Lincolnshire, which could be due to the 

differences in the case mix of general 

practice lists, as well as the relative 

completeness of the registers. 

Page 67



Description of Lincolnshire 
Health Services and Activity

Commissioning arrangements and 

service provision

People with a learning disability access 

a wide range of mainstream services 

that are provided for the general 

population. NHS commissioning 

organisations have a responsibility to 

ensure that these mainstream health 

services address the needs of people 

with learning disabilities. Furthermore, 

specialised learning disability healthcare 

is commissioned for people who require 

it. This section of the report provides 

information on some of the services 

that are available for the Lincolnshire 

learning disability population.

Primary Care Services

A wide range of primary care services 

(general practices, dental practices, 

opticians and community pharmacies) 

are available for people with a learning 

disability. As part of QOF, general 

practices are required to maintain 

a register of adults with a learning 

disability. Annual health checks for 

people with a learning disability were 

introduced in 2008 as part of a Directed 

Enhanced Service (DES).

Community Services           

Lincolnshire Community Health Services 

(LCHS) provide a wide range of health 

services for the Lincolnshire population, 

including people with learning 

disabilities. LCHS provides a Special 

Care Dentistry Service which addresses 

oral health for particular individuals and 

groups in society, such as those with a 

severe and profound learning disability, 

who have needs beyond the usual 

skills and facilities of a general dental 

practitioner.

 

8

 

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CHAPTER 1

Figure 1.1 Age-specific (18 years and over) prevalence of learning disabilities recorded 

on primary care registers held by GP practices across Lincolnshire, 2010-2011

Source: Primary care registers held by GP practices across Lincolnshire

The national PANSI (Projecting Adult Needs and Service Information) and POPPI 

(Projecting Older People Population Information) datasets provide information 

on the predicated number of learning disability cases 10,11. Although there are 

known shortcomings with the evidence on which this data is based, they indicate 

that there could be in the region of 13000 people with learning disability across 

Lincolnshire, with 2709 of these being moderate or severe.

In March 2011, 1714 people with learning disabilities were known to Lincolnshire 

adult social care services. The ratio of males to females was 1.23:1 and 98.4% 

were of white British ethnic origin. Boston, East Lindsey and West Lindsey had the 

highest crude rate in their population. The Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 

2010 suggests that learning disability service users live in more deprived areas 

compared to the general population, with more than half residing in the two most 

deprived quintiles of the county. This may be partly explained by access to services. 

For example, the distribution of IMD scores for CQC approved care homes is 

greater in more deprived areas of the county.

POPPI and PANSI project the number of adults with a learning disability from 2011 

to 2030. It is estimated that, in Lincolnshire, there will be a 16% increase in the 

number of cases during this period. It is projected that the proportion of people 

with profound and multiple learning disabilities will increase, and the greatest 

increase is anticipated in people aged over 65 years.

Page 68



9

Secondary Care Services

United Lincolnshire Hospitals provide 

a wide range of healthcare from their 

four main hospitals.

Specialised Learning Disability Service

Lincolnshire Partnership Foundation 

NHS Trust provides specialist health 

services for people with a learning 

disability, for example, an assessment, 

treatment, and rehabilitation service 

(Long Leys Court), outpatient clinics and 

specialist allied health professionals.

Lincolnshire County Council Learning 

Disability Community Partnership Teams 

provide integrated health and social 

care.

East Midlands Specialised 

Commissioning Group is responsible 

for commissioning secure (low, medium 

and high security) mental health and 

learning disability services for the 

Lincolnshire population.   

Service Activity

Whilst carrying out the HNA it was 

difficult to obtain comprehensive 

information on how far people with 

learning disabilities are accessing the 

full range of services that are available 

to them. This section of the report 

provides some information about the 

available data, which, unfortunately, is 

limited.

 

LEARNING DISABILITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT

Primary Care Activity

Cervical Cancer Screening

The screening uptake amongst women with a learning disability is considerably 

lower than for the general population. In 2010/11, the uptake amongst the 

general population was 71%, compared with 28% for the learning disability 

population (Figure 1.2). Nearly half (48%) of the eligible learning disability 

population have declined/been ‘exception reported’ (compared to 12% of the 

general population), and consequently will not routinely receive invitations for 

screening.

Figure 1.2 Cervical screening uptake (2010/11)

 

 

Source: Learning Disability Audit, NHS Lincolnshire

NHS Health Checks

Eighty-two general practices in Lincolnshire provide this service. Figure 1.3 shows 

the proportion of people with a learning disability who have received an annual 

health check, both in Lincolnshire as a whole and for each of the initial CCGs.

Figure 1.3 People with a learning disability receiving a health check

 

 

Source: Learning Disability Audit, NHS Lincolnshire

Page 69



10 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CHAPTER 1

Hospital Activity

There was analysis of the levels of 

inpatient hospital activity for the 

general population compared to the 

learning disability population during 

2010/11. Because of the relatively 

small learning disability population, 

any comparison of the two population 

groups should be treated with caution. 

Nevertheless, the analysis does provide 

some information on the differences in 

activity between the two groups. Some 

of the key findings are:

rate for the learning disability 

population is over twice that of the 

general population.

23% of the emergency admissions 

in the learning disability population 

compared to 12% in the general 

population.

account for 11% of the emergency 

admissions for the learning disability 

population compared to 2% for the 

general population.

5% of the emergency admissions 

for the learning disability population 

compared to less than 2% for the 

general population.

admission rate is almost twice as 

high amongst the learning disability 

population compared to that of the 

general population.

Barriers to Services

The National Primary Care Research 

and Development Centre12 carried 

out a review on access to healthcare 

for people with learning disabilities. 

It identified a number of findings 

in relation to barriers to accessing 

healthcare. Some of these include:

communicating health needs.

signs and symptoms.

professionals of how to address the 

specific health needs of people with 

learning disabilities.

  

Effectiveness of Services 
and Interventions

The literature on the effectiveness 

of treatments, interventions and 

service models for people with 

learning disabilities is mainly limited to 

descriptive and uncontrolled research 

studies. Some guidance on how 

to meet the needs of people with 

learning disabilities has been produced 

by the various Royal Colleges. For 

example, the Royal College of General 

Practitioners has produced resources to 

support general practices in delivering 

high-quality health checks13. The Royal 

College has also been involved in 

producing commissioning guidance 

for CCGs14, in order to achieve better 

health outcomes for people with 

learning disabilities. The Royal College 

of Nursing has produced guidance to 

support nurses in delivering high-quality 

healthcare for people with learning 

disabilities15.

Corporate Assessment and 
Qualitative Analysis 

A range of approaches was used to 

gain the views of service users, service 

providers and commissioners, and other 

stakeholders: 

groups for people with learning 

disabilities, which represented 30 

service users, were consulted.

An online survey was developed for 

service providers and commissioners 

and 19 responses were received.

was developed and three people 

responded.

Service users reported that, in general, 

they are happy with general practices 

and dental services, and they were 

very positive regarding some of the 

specialised learning disability services. 

Service providers gave feedback on 

how communication could be improved 

across agencies to enhance joint 

working, and on how further training 

for generic staff could help meet the 

specific needs of people with learning 

disabilities.

Page 70



11

Recommendations

The HNA report includes approximately 

50 recommendations covering a 

number of themes. Although the full 

set of recommendations cannot be 

provided in this chapter, some of the 

most significant recommendations 

(with the theme provided in brackets) 

are listed below:

should ensure joint plans are in place 

to meet the needs of service users, 

including increased demand from 

more adults with learning disabilities 

(strategy and policy).

to identify and record all people with 

learning disabilities (identification of 

adults with learning disabilities).

health activities should be reviewed 

to ensure provision across Lincolnshire 

(prevention of learning disabilities).

opportunity for adults with learning 

disabilities to access healthy lifestyle 

initiatives and services (healthy lifestyle 

initiatives).

encouraged to provide annual health 

checks (primary care).

on learning disability awareness in 

order to develop their clinical skills, 

so that they are equipped to meet 

the health needs of this group 

(action across healthcare services).  

LEARNING DISABILITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT

References 

1. Department of Health. Valuing people: a new strategy for learning disability for the 21st century. London: 

Department of Health; 2001.

2. Department of Health. Valuing People Now: a new three-year strategy for people with learning disabilities. 

London: Department of Health; 2009.

3. Directgov. Disability and the Equality Act 2010: Directgov - Disabled. [Online]. Available from: http://www.

direct.gov.uk/en/DisabledPeople/RightsAndObligations/DisabilityRights/DG_4001068 [Accessed 16 March 2012]

4. Disability Rights Commission. Equal Treatment: Closing the Gap. Health formal investigation report. London: 

Disability Rights Commission; 2006.

5. Department of Health. Promoting equality. London: Department of Health; 2007.

6. MENCAP. Treat me right! Better healthcare for people with a learning disability. London: MENCAP; 2004.

7. MENCAP. Death by indifference: following up the Treat me right! Report. London: MENCAP; 2007.

8. Local Government Ombudsman, Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman. Six lives: The provision of 

public services to people with learning disabilities. London: The Stationery Office; 2009.

9. Michael J, The Independent Inquiry into Access to Healthcare for People with Learning Disabilities. Healthcare 

for all: report of the independent inquiry into access to healthcare for people with learning disabilities. London: 

Department of Health; 2008.

10. Institute of Public Care Oxford Brookes University. Projecting adult needs and service information. [Online]. 

Available from: http://www.pansi.org.uk [Accessed 24 January 2012].

11. Institute of Public Care Oxford Brookes University. Projecting older people population information. [Online]. 

Available from: http://www.poppi.org [Accessed 24 January 2012]

12. Alborz A, McNally R, Swallow A, Glendinning C. From the cradle to the grave: A literature review of access to 

health care for people with learning disabilities across the lifespan. London: National Co-ordinating Centre for 

NHS Service Delivery and Organisation; 2004.

13. Hoghton M, The RCGP learning disabilities group. A step by step guide for GP practices: Annual health checks 

for people with a learning disability. London: Royal College of General Practitioners; 2010.

14. Improving Health and Lives: Learning Disabilities Observatory, Royal College of General Practitioners. Improving 

the health and wellbeing of people with learning disabilities: An evidence based commissioning guide for 

emerging clinical commissioning groups (draft). Lancaster: Improving Health and Lives: Learning Disabilities 

Observatory & Royal College of General Practitioners; 2011.

15. Improving Health and Lives: Learning Disabilities Observatory, Royal College of General Practitioners. Improving 

the health and wellbeing of people with learning disabilities: An evidence based commissioning guide for 

emerging clinical commissioning groups (draft). Lancaster: Improving Health and Lives: Learning Disabilities 

Observatory & Royal College of General Practitioners; 2011.

The full Learning Disability HNA report is available on the Lincolnshire Research Observatory 

website www.research-lincs.org.uk.

Page 71



12 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CHAPTER 2

NHS Health Checks

What is the NHS Health 
Check Programme? 

Everyone is at some risk of developing 

vascular disease. The risk increases 

with age, and other increases in risk 

are attributable to being overweight, 

smoking, not exercising regularly and a 

poor diet.

The ‘NHS Health Check’ Programme, 

offers preventative checks to people 

aged 40-74 years to assess their risk of 

vascular disease (heart disease, stroke, 

diabetes and kidney disease) followed 

by appropriate management and 

intervention, e.g. medical intervention 

and/or referral onto lifestyle services 

such as weight management. 

The NHS Health Check is a 5-year 

rolling programme, which means that 

people are invited for a health check 

every five years. Patients leave the 

programme if they are diagnosed with 

vascular disease and therefore will be 

treated appropriately, or once they 

reach the age of 75.

In Lincolnshire, those at most risk are 

being invited for their health check 

first. Risk is calculated by a software risk 

tool which uses indicators such as age, 

gender, BMI, family history of vascular 

disease and previous blood pressure 

and cholesterol measurements to give 

a risk percentage. Where information is 

not available, for example a cholesterol 

test has not been conducted in 

previous years, the software calculates 

an estimated reading on which to 

base the risk score. Once a person 

has been invited and assessed, a new, 

more accurate, risk score is calculated 

with the up-to-date information. If 

any undiagnosed underlying disease 

is detected, then this can be treated 

and managed, and general risk can 

be reduced by discussing where 

improvements in lifestyle can be made.

The prevention or early identification of 

vascular disease with this assessment 

and management programme will 

lead to a higher uptake of preventative 

interventions (including statins, 

anti-hypertensives, brief exercise 

interventions, weight management 

and smoking cessation), reduce risk 

of vascular disease, and increase early 

detection and treatment of kidney 

disease and diabetes. The intended 

effect will be a reduction in vascular 

disease morbidity and mortality across 

the population.

Page 72



13NHS HEALTH CHECKS

Background

Vascular diseases are the biggest cause 

of death in the UK, and the NHS Health 

Check programme could, on average, 

prevent 1,600 heart attacks and strokes 

and save at least 650 lives, each year. 

The vascular checks programme could 

prevent over 4,000 people a year from 

developing diabetes, and detect at least 

20,000 cases of diabetes, or kidney 

disease earlier, allowing individuals to 

be better managed and improve their 

quality of life. (Information from Putting 

Prevention First, Vascular Checks: Risk 

Assessment and Management)1.

Over the past decade there have 

been significant improvements in the 

treatment of vascular disease through 

the National Service Frameworks on 

coronary heart disease, renal services 

and diabetes. Nationally there has 

been a 40% reduction in deaths from 

cardiovascular disease in people under 

75 between 1996 and 20081. During 

the same period, Lincolnshire had a 

43% reduction. However, it remains 

a major cause of disability and poor 

health.

A focus is now needed on how vascular 

diseases can be prevented earlier in 

life. This will enable people to make 

informed choices about improving 

their health, and help them live 

longer and healthier lives. Vascular 

disease currently affects the lives of 

over 4 million people in England. It is 

responsible for 36% of deaths (170,000 

a year in England) and accounts for 

a fifth of all hospital admissions. It is 

the largest single cause of long-term 

ill health and disability, impairing the 

quality of life for many people1.

Evidence shows that it is possible 

to identify the risk factors for these 

diseases, and also to act to change 

them. Early intervention to reduce 

risk can prevent, delay, and, in some 

circumstances, reverse the onset of 

vascular disease1.

Page 73



14 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CHAPTER 2

How we have performed 

NHS Lincolnshire was required to start 

commissioning the programme from 

2009/10, and has done so with a Local 

Enhanced Service (LES) currently in 

place with 96% of GP practices. This 

has prioritised people who are at the 

greatest risk of vascular disease so they 

are invited first.

There is a requirement to have the 

programme rolled out fully by 2012/13, 

and the programme is a national ‘must 

be done’. Local Authorities will be 

expected to ensure NHS Health Checks 

continue as part of the mandatory 

responsibilities laid out in the Health 

and Social Care Act, 2012.

Not everyone aged 40-74 years old is 

eligible for an NHS Health Check. Only 

those who have not been diagnosed 

with a vascular disease will be invited. 

From full roll out in 2012/13, where 

one-fifth of the eligible population in 

Lincolnshire will be invited, 45,046 

patients will be eligible for their 

NHS Health Check each year. The 

Department of Health produced 

an economic modelling document 

which showed that, of all the options 

considered to deliver the programme 

in the most clinically effective and cost 

effective way, a starting age of 40 was 

the optimal, with vascular checks every 

five years2. 

Table 2.1 shows the number of 

eligible people who have been invited 

for an NHS Health Check, and the 

number receiving a health check. 

The Department of Health requested 

that PCTs were ‘seen to be doing 

something’ in 2009/10. From 2010/11 

formal trajectories have been agreed 

and in 2010/11 NHS Lincolnshire was 

one of only 2 East Midlands PCTs to 

meet these SHA targets.

Table 2.1: NHS Health Check Target and Actual Uptake in Lincolnshire, 2009-2014

Data source: Integrated Performance Measures Returns (IPMR) NHS Lincolnshire

Outcomes

Specialist software was introduced in 2010/11 to assist practices in identifying 

eligible patients, and to enable full reporting of the data set required by the 

Department of Health. 

Since the beginning of the programme (1st August 2009 to 30th September 2012) 

50,599 people have received an NHS Health Check in Lincolnshire.

Table 2.2 shows the number of first letter invitations sent to eligible patients, and 

the number attending as a result of this from the start of the programme.

Table 2.2: NHS Health Check Attendance by Gender, 2009-2012

 

Data source: TCR NHS Health Check Database

Year

Number to be 

Invited & (Number 

to be Assessed)

Actual Number 

Invited & 

(Assessed)

% Uptake 

to be 

Achieved

Actual % 

Uptake 

Achieved

09/10 No target set 13,530 ( 6,323) No target set 47%

10/11 21,287 (10,003) 27,151 (12,886) 47% 47%

11/12 32,840 (17,734) 32,897 (22,075) 54% 67%

12/13 45,046 (25,676) 57%

13/14 45,046 (27,028) 60%

Gender Number Invited to Attend Number Attending % Attending

Male 45,537 26,756 59%

Female 35,020 23,843 68%

Page 74



15NHS HEALTH CHECKS

Figure 2.1 shows the percentage of eligible patients 

attending for their NHS Health Check after being invited, by 

gender and age group.

Figure 2.1: NHS Health Check Attendance by Gender and Age 

Group, 2009-2012

 

 

Data source: TCR NHS Health Check Database

Table 2.3 shows the disease diagnosis from the start of the 

programme, as a direct result of a patient having their NHS 

Health Check.

Table 2.3: NHS Health Check Disease Diagnosis, 2009-2012

 

Data source: TCR NHS Health Check Database

The risk tool used to calculate an individual’s overall risk of 

developing vascular disease is called QRISK2. This calculates 

the risk of having a fatal or non-fatal heart attack or stroke 

in the next 10 years. A 20% risk in, say, a 50-year old man, 

means that he has a 1 in 5 chance of having a major vascular 

disease event before he is 60 years old. 

Table 2.4 shows the number and percentage of those 

estimated (by the risk tool) to be at high risk, the numbers 

invited for an NHS Health Check and those attending.

 

Table 2.4: NHS Health Check Attendance by High Risk Patients, 

2009-2012

 

 

Data source: TCR NHS Health Check Database

It is encouraging to see that, as we enter the first full year 

of roll out in 2012/13, already 70% of those estimated at 

high risk have been invited, and 82% have chosen to attend 

for their NHS Health Check. The uptake rate in this group 

is much higher than the general uptake rate, even the high 

67% achieved in 2011/12.

Where someone has been identified as being at a high risk 

of developing vascular disease, but no underlying disease 

has been detected, they are placed on a high risk register. 

This allows their GP to monitor them with an annual check 

up, and provide advice on reducing this risk with lifestyle 

improvements and referrals on to lifestyle services where 

appropriate.

Identification of undiagnosed disease, which people are often 

unaware of, is only one half of the NHS Health Check. The 

other half concentrates on offering people tailored lifestyle 

advice to equip them with the knowledge to manage their 

risk of developing vascular disease. There is also assistance in 

the form of lifestyle, services, such as weight management, 

smoking cessation, ‘exercise on referral’, healthy walking 

clubs and many more, which people can be referred to. 

Disease

Number 

of Cases 

Identified

Diabetes Type II 415
1 in every 122 

patients seen 

Hypertension 1281
1 in every 40 patients 

seen

Chronic Kidney Disease 207
1 in every 244 

patients seen

Familial 

Hypercholesterolaemia
50

1 in every 1,012 

patients seen

Atrial Fibrillation 41
1 in every 1,234 

patients seen

Peripheral Vascular 

(Arterial) Disease
13

1 in every 3,892 

patients seen

>20 

RISK

Number 

Invited

Number 

Invited 

as a %

Number of 

NHS Health 

Checks 

Completed 

on these 

High Risk 

patients

Number 

of NHS 

Health 

Checks 

Completed 

as a %

Male 13,601 9,332 69% 7,511 81%

Female 3,539 2,679 76% 2,321 87%

Total 17,140 12,011 70% 9,832 82%

Page 75



16 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CHAPTER 2

Quotes from GP practices 
providing the service:

‘’There is no doubt that the Health 

Check service has, on many occasions, 

highlighted potential problems with 

patients who, because they have been 

diagnosed early are on treatment early, 

and thus any serious effects have been 

avoided. The patient group that are 

being called in are usually the ones that 

do not come to the GP very often, so 

having the ability to give them a full 

MOT is invaluable.

The patient satisfaction with the service 

has been excellent, and our nurses who 

undertake the checks have found them 

interesting to do from a clinical point 

of view.

We, as a practice, hope the funding for 

this vital service will continue.’’

“The NHS Health Check has identified a 

number of patients with diabetes who 

may otherwise have gone undetected. 

Where the patient is identified in 

the early stages of diabetes type II, 

lifestyle changes have been made and 

the symptoms reduced or alleviated 

completely. 

Having an NHS Health Check has 

encouraged some patients to make a 

concerted effort to lose weight. One 

patient has managed to lose two stone 

and five inches from around his waist. 

His cholesterol (LDL) has dropped from 

5.7 to 4.8 and in, his own words has 

‘turned his life around’”.

Page 76



17NHS HEALTH CHECKS

The future of the NHS 
Health Check Programme

The Public Health White Paper: Healthy 

Lives, Healthy People3 highlights that 

the NHS Health Check remains a 

priority, and will continue in its current 

format as a national ‘must be done’.

The roll out of the Health Check 

Programme in Lincolnshire met 

agreed trajectories for 2011/12. The 

LES was written in consultation with 

GP practices and the Local Medical 

Committee. There are currently 4 GP 

practices out of 102 which are not 

signed up to the LES; this will impact 

on the planned full roll out for the 

current year (2012/13). As a LES is 

agreed with each individual practice, 

currently, practices are not obliged 

to take part. Each individual practice 

decides whether they wish to provide 

the service to their patients.

The inclusion of the NHS Health Check 

on the NHS Lincolnshire corporate 

dashboard; quarterly reports written 

and sent to senior managers, including 

the Accountable Officers of the 

newly formed Clinical Commissioning 

Groups (CCGs); Public Health Assistant 

Directors raising the profile of the 

programme with their respective CCGs; 

and the backing of Lincolnshire County 

Council’s Health Scrutiny Committee, 

have all had a positive impact on the 

number of GP practices which have 

signed up to the LES in 2012/13. We 

hope by continuing to raise the profile 

of the programme and reporting on 

the positive outcomes for patients, that 

the few remaining practices will see the 

advantages of offering this service to 

their patients.

Conclusion

The benefits of the NHS Health Check 

include: 

identified at an earlier stage of 

vascular change, therefore offering 

a better chance of putting in place 

positive ways to substantially reduce 

the risk of premature death or 

disability; 

diabetes in many of those at 

increased risk of this disease; 

expectancy and reduction in 

premature mortality that are under 

threat from the rise in obesity and 

sedentary living;

significant inroads into health 

inequalities, including socio-

economic, ethnic and gender 

inequalities;

care admissions due to cardiovasular 

disease events.

The NHS Health Check programme 

has been generally well received in 

Lincolnshire, with an encouraging 

sign up from GP practices and a 67% 

uptake rate in 2011/12 by those people 

sent an invitation.

Now at full roll out in 2012/13, the 

small service gap of practices choosing 

not to participate will have some impact 

on us being able to reach the number 

of people we would have hoped to, 

but, on a positive note, we have met 

our trajectories in previous years, and 

practices have assessed over 50,000 

people and diagnosed over 2000 cases 

of vascular disease as a result.

The programme is now in its fourth 

year, and we need to place a real 

emphasis on promoting the huge part 

that lifestyle plays on a person’s risk of 

developing vascular disease. As those 

at highest risk are being seen, those at 

a lower estimated risk will be getting 

calls for their assessments, and may 

feel that the lack of underlying disease 

means that they will not develop 

vascular disease in the future. Everyone 

is at some risk, and this risk can be 

reduced considerably by making, often 

quite small, changes in behaviour. 

For example, if you are overweight or 

obese, a 5% reduction in weight can 

bring real health benefits. If you do no 

exercise, then starting to do just ‘some’ 

will bring improvements in health, and 

stopping smoking can reduce your risk 

considerably.

Lincolnshire has lifestyle services in 

place, such as weight management, 

smoking cessation and ‘exercise on 

referral’, to support those wishing to 

improve their health and lower their risk 

of developing vascular disease in the 

future. In 2012/13 we have increased 

the number of weight-management 

places available, and will continue to 

manage these services so that they are 

best suited to meet the needs of the 

people of Lincolnshire.

Recommendations

The commissioners, public health teams 

and providers work together to increase 

the number of NHS Health checks 

offered, increase the uptake rate and 

agree a way to cover the service gaps.

The commissioners, Public Health teams 

and providers work together to ensure 

that every eligible individual is offered 

high quality lifestyle advice and when 

appropriate, a referral to a lifestyle 

service.

Page 77



18 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CHAPTER 2

References

1. Putting Prevention First, Vascular Checks: Risk Assessment and Management – Next Steps Guidance for Primary Care Trusts - DH November 2008 

2. Economic Modelling for Vascular Checks (A technical consultation on the work undertaken to establish the clinical and cost effectiveness evidence base) – DH April 2008 

3. Healthy Lives, Healthy People: our strategy for public health in England – DH November 2010

Appendix - Disease Outlines

Diabetes – Diabetes occurs when the 

level of glucose (sugar) in the blood 

becomes higher than normal. There 

are two main types of diabetes - type 

1 diabetes and type 2 diabetes. Type 2 

diabetes used to be known as maturity 

onset, or non-insulin-dependent 

diabetes. It develops mainly in people 

older than the age of 40 (but can also 

occur in younger people). In the UK, 

about one in 20 people aged over 65, 

and around one in five people over 85, 

have diabetes.

Hypertension – High blood pressure 

is one of several ‘risk factors’ that 

can increase an individual’s chance of 

developing heart disease, stroke, and 

other serious conditions. As a rule, the 

higher the blood pressure, the greater 

the risk. Treatment includes a change 

in lifestyle risk factors where these can 

be improved - losing weight if you are 

overweight, regular physical activity, a 

healthy diet, cutting back if you drink a 

lot of alcohol, stopping smoking, and a 

low salt and caffeine intake. If needed, 

medication can lower blood pressure.

CKD (Chronic Kidney Disease) – 

Chronic kidney disease means that 

your kidneys are not working as well as 

they once did. Various conditions can 

cause CKD. Severity can vary, but most 

cases are: mild or moderate, occur in 

older people, do not cause symptoms 

and do not progress to kidney failure. 

People with any stage of CKD have 

an increased risk of developing heart 

disease or a stroke. This is why it is 

important to detect even mild CKD, 

as treatment may not only slow down 

the progression of the disease, but also 

reduces the risk of developing heart 

disease or stroke.

FH (Familial hypercholesterolaemia) 

- Familial hypercholesterolaemia is 

an inherited condition, in which the 

level of low-density lipoprotein (LDL) 

cholesterol in the blood is higher than 

normal from birth. The condition may 

be discovered at a routine health check, 

or by noticing some of the features, 

such as fatty lumps on the skin or 

around the eyes.

AF (Atrial Fibrillation) – Atrial 

fibrillation causes a fast and erratic 

heartbeat. It is a complication of various 

diseases. Medication can slow the 

heart rate back to normal, and ease 

symptoms. In some cases, treatment 

can restore the heart back to a normal 

rhythm. In addition, a drug such as 

warfarin is usually advised to reduce the 

risk of having a stroke.

PVD (Peripheral Vascular Disease) - 

Peripheral Vascular Disease is narrowing 

of one or more arteries (blood vessels). 

It mainly affects arteries that take blood 

to the legs. The condition is also known 

as peripheral arterial disease. It is also 

sometimes called hardening of the 

arteries of the legs.

  

Page 78



19CHILDHOOD OBESITY

What is childhood obesity?

Overweight and obesity are terms used 

to describe an excess of body fat, which 

results from an energy imbalance where 

more energy is taken in compared to 

what is consumed. 

Within the UK, overweight and obesity 

are assessed among adults using the 

Body Mass Index (BMI). For children, 

there are no clearly defined BMI criteria, 

as weight and height vary considerably 

depending upon age and stage of 

development. Instead, overweight and 

obesity are defined for children using 

the British 1990 growth reference 

charts, where the weight status of the 

child is classified according to their age 

and sex. Children with a weight at or 

above the 95th centile are classified 

as obese, and children between the 

85th and 95th centiles are classified 

as overweight. Because this method 

of measurement takes into account 

the age and gender of the child, and 

matches it with measurements taken 

from British children before the current 

high levels of obesity were observed, 

it is widely acknowledged to be the 

most accurate way to identify weight 

problems in children under 12 years of 

age.

Classification of  
children’s BMI

Children who are overweight or 

obese early in life are at greater risk of 

developing serious health problems. 

The World Health Organisation states;

‘Overweight children are likely to 

become obese adults. They are more 

likely than non-overweight children to 

develop diabetes and cardiovascular 

diseases at a younger age, which 

in turn are associated with a higher 

chance of premature death and 

disability.’1 

Being obese or overweight brings 

significant risks at a range of 

different points throughout life (NHS 

Information Centre 2011). The health 

risks for adults who do not maintain 

a healthy weight status are somewhat 

concerning. Evidence from the 

Department of Health2 suggests that, 

when compared with an adult healthy-

weight male, an obese male is:

type 2 diabetes;

cancer of the colon;

more likely to develop high blood 

pressure, which is a major risk factor 

for stroke and heart disease. 

Similarly, an obese woman, compared 

with a healthy weight woman, is:

develop type 2 diabetes; 

develop high blood pressure;

have a heart attack. 

Antenatal and  
postnatal risks 

Obesity in pregnancy is associated with 

an increased risk of serious adverse 

outcomes, including miscarriage, foetal 

congenital anomaly, thromboembolism, 

gestational diabetes, pre-eclampsia, 

dysfunctional labour, postpartum 

haemorrhage, wound infections, 

stillbirth and neonatal death. Obese 

women also tend to contribute to a 

higher caesarean section rate and lower 

breastfeeding rates compared with 

women with a healthy BMI. 

The Government’s Foresight Project 

Report, Tackling Obesities: Future 

Choices3 highlights the ‘generational 

dimension’ of obesity, claiming that 

children of parents who are overweight 

or obese are also more likely to have 

difficulty maintaining a healthy weight.

Childhood Obesity

Classification BMI Centile

Underweight 2nd centile

Healthy Weight
2nd centile – 84.9th 

centile

Overweight
85th centile – 

94.5th centile

Obese 95th centile

Atrial 

Fibrillation
41

Peripheral 

Vascular 

(Arterial) 

Disease

13

Page 79



How do we know what 
the picture of obesity looks 
like in Lincolnshire? The 
National Child Measurement 
Programme (NCMP).

The NCMP takes place annually 

between September and June during 

the school academic year. The children 

involved are those in reception year 

(aged 4/5 years of age) and year 6 

(aged 10/11 years of age). 

Over the past four years, the 

percentage of children taking part in 

this process has improved, and we now 

have a robust set of measurements to 

give us a snapshot of the numbers of 

overweight and obese children within 

the targeted age groups in Lincolnshire.

The numbers of overweight children 

in both reception and year 6 have 

demonstrated a slight increase (not 

statistically significant) over the past 12 

months.

Despite showing a slight decrease over 

the past 12 months, the numbers of 

year 6 children identified as obese 

has remained around 19% of the 

population. It is clear, looking at these 

figures for each school year, that there 

is a consistent doubling of the numbers 

of obese children during their first 

seven years of school (Figure 3.1).

Figure 3.1: Prevalence of Overweight and Obese Children in Lincolnshire 2008/09 to 

2011/12

 

 

Source: NHS Lincolnshire Dataset

Figure 3.2: Reception Year Prevalence of Childhood Obesity by District Council 2011/12

 

Source: NHS Lincolnshire Dataset

Figure 3.2 shows that reception year children in Lincolnshire exhibit higher levels of 

obesity than the England and East Midlands average. 

The only district councils in Lincolnshire which demonstrate statistically significantly 

lower numbers of obese reception year children compared to England as a whole 

are North and South Kesteven. 

20 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CHAPTER 3

Indicator 2008/9  2009/10

2010/11  

2011/12 2010/11

Reception 

(age 4-5 yrs.)

Overweight

Obese

Overweight or 

obese

15%   15%
 14.4%      

15.4%
38445

9.9%    10.8%
 9.4%       

9.7%
3625

24.9%    25.8%
 23.8%      

25.1%
34820

Year 6 (age 

10-11 yrs.)

Overweight

Obese

Overweight or 

obese

16%    15.5%
 15.1%      

15.7%
34199

18.5%    19.5%
 20.2%      

19.4%
25840

34.5%   35%
 35.3%      

35.1%
99.0%

87.5% 79.9% 89.4% 75.6%

11.8% 10.7% 7.7% 9.4%

Page 80



21CHILDHOOD OBESITY

Figure 3.3: Year 6 Prevalence of Childhood Obesity by District Council 2011/12

 

Source: NHS Lincolnshire Dataset

The prevalence of obesity in year 6 children continues to be above the England 

and East Midlands averages. 

Two areas of the county, Lincoln and South Holland, demonstrate significantly 

higher levels than England (figure 3.3). Lincoln and South Holland also have 

statistically significantly higher prevalence of obesity compared to the Lincolnshire 

average. 

The obesity data for reception and year 6 in 2011/12 continues to demonstrate 

a doubling of the numbers of children measured as being obese in these year 

groups. 

Nevertheless, in some areas of the county the outcomes exceed this average 

increase. Lincoln City increased from 10.2% to 22.2%, North Kesteven from 7.8% 

to 17.7% and South Kesteven from 8.0% to 17.9%. 

Childhood obesity and gender

Similar to national trends, the analysis of local Lincolnshire data demonstrates 

that the prevalence of obesity is higher among boys than girls. In 2011/12, 9% of 

reception-age girls were obese compared to 10.5% of boys. 

The numbers of year 6 girls who are being identified as obese has continued to 

rise year on year since 2006: reaching 17.7% by 2011/12. Nevertheless, this is 

lower than the prevalence in year 6 boys which was 21.1% in 2011/12. 

Childhood obesity and 
deprivation

The prevalence of obesity varies with 

deprivation. The Index of Multiple 

Deprivation (IMD 2010) quintile one 

indicates those who are most deprived, 

and quintile five those least deprived. 

The Lincolnshire data demonstrates a 

correlation between deprivation and 

overweight/obesity levels. Those in the 

most deprived groups have a statistically 

significantly higher prevalence of 

overweight and obesity compared to 

those in the more affluent quintiles for 

both reception and year 6 pupils. 

Implementing a ‘life 
course approach’ to reduce 
childhood obesity

The ‘life course approach’ recognises 

that there are important stages in 

peoples lives where they are more likely 

to change their behaviour or come into 

contact with health services. We have 

taken this evidence-based approach 

as one of the key themes for tackling 

childhood obesity in Lincolnshire, to 

ensure we provide a comprehensive 

map of interventions to target children 

and their families across their life 

stages. Figure 3.4 shows the life course 

approach in Lincolnshire, where a range 

of interventions are implemented at 

different tiers (universal, targeted and 

specialist).

Page 81



22 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CHAPTER 3

 Page 82



Figure 3.4: Description of the Life Course Approach to reducing  

Childhood Obesity in Lincolnshire

Conclusion 

The health, social and personal costs associated with the consistent increase in 

the numbers of children and adults who are not maintaining a healthy weight are 

high. If we don’t start to reduce the numbers of overweight or obese children and 

adults in Lincolnshire, this will undoubtedly overwhelm services, and not just health 

services, in the future. 

Over the past four years, we have observed that the proportion of children 

identified as being obese at year-6 is double that of reception year pupils. 

Therefore, the necessity to understand what is affecting our children’s ability to 

maintain a healthy weight during these informative early school years is imperative.

To reverse the childhood obesity crisis in Lincolnshire, we must support families to 

make healthier food choices, give portion sizes appropriate to the child’s age and 

keep physically active and healthy. It is necessary to do this at home, in pre-school 

nursery and at school. 

We are providing interventions across each area of the child’s lifetime: during 

pregnancy, early years and throughout their school years. This is supported by the 

following recommendations:

References 

1 The World Health Organisation, 10 Facts on Obesity; http://www.who.int/features/factfiles/obesity/facts/en/index2.html accessed 17/12/12 

2 The Department of Health, Facts & Figures on Obesity; http://www.dh.gov.uk/health/2012/04/obesityfacts/ accessed 17/12/12  

3 Foresight Project Report 2007, Tackling Obesities: future Choices 2nd edition, Government Office for Science, p8 

 

23

 

CHILDHOOD OBESITY

of childhood obesity with local 

communities

breastfeed

appropriate portion sizes in the 

home, nursery and school

eating healthy school meals and 

reduce the numbers of those eating 

unhealthy packed lunches 

home, nursery and school

use to raise the profile of childhood 

obesity e.g. ‘me-sized’ plates

Page 83



24 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CHAPTER 4

Introduction

For over one hundred years, 

responsibility for public health was a 

statutory function of local authorities, 

but since 1974 has been located within 

the NHS, most recently within Strategic 

Health Authorities and Primary Care 

Trusts (PCT). During this time, specialist 

public health staff have assumed the 

lead for three major responsibilities 

on behalf of the NHS and local 

communities:

factors and the wider determinants 

of health;

the spread of communicable 

diseases, leading the NHS response 

to major incidents, and screening 

programmes;

to the commissioning of health 

services, evidence of effectiveness, 

care pathways.

Under the Health and Social Care 

Act 2012, on 1st April 2013 primary 

responsibility for health improvement 

and health protection will transfer 

at the national level from the NHS 

to Public Health England, and at 

local level from PCTs to upper tier 

local authorities. Responsibility for 

strategic planning and commissioning 

of NHS services will transfer to the 

NHS Commissioning Board and to 

Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs). 

Around 60 Public Health staff currently 

employed by NHS Lincolnshire will 

transfer to Lincolnshire County Council 

in April 2013, together with an annual 

budget of around £27 million. 

There will be four CCGs in Lincolnshire:

- Lincolnshire East CCG (East Lindsey, 

Boston and Skegness)

- Lincolnshire West CCG (nearly all 

of West Lindsey, City of Lincoln and 

the northern half of North Kesteven)

- South Lincolnshire CCG (South 

Holland, Bourne, Stamford and the 

Deepings)

- South West Lincolnshire CCG 

(Grantham and Sleaford and 

surrounding areas)

CCGs will be responsible for improving 

the health of the population and 

reducing health inequalities within their 

area, and the commissioning of many 

NHS services - effectively, all health 

services except primary care, public 

health and specialised services - from 

NHS and private sector providers. The 

four Lincolnshire CCGs will, between 

them, spend around £900 million per 

year.

CCGs will not directly employ Public 

Health specialists. Rather, each CCG 

will obtain its public health advice 

and support from staff employed 

by the relevant local authority. The 

Department of Health has mandated 

local authorities to provide this support, 

funded from the ringfenced Public 

Health grant that they will receive. The 

Department of Health has indicated 

that around 40-50% of public health 

staff time should be allocated to work 

for CCGs. 

In Lincolnshire, a Memorandum of 

Understanding has been agreed with 

each of the four CCGs, which sets 

out in detail what support will be 

provided for each of the three main 

areas of public health work: health 

improvement, health protection and 

population healthcare. This document 

will be reviewed annually.

Health Improvement

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 

gives Lincolnshire County Council a 

statutory duty to improve the health 

of the population of Lincolnshire and 

reduce health inequalities, from April 

2013. Clinical Commissioning Groups 

will be required to secure continuous 

improvement in health, and to reduce 

inequalities in the outcomes achieved 

by health services. This will require 

action along the entire care pathway 

from prevention to tertiary care. In 

addition, the NHS will only be able to 

remain within budget in future years 

if there is successful implementation 

of preventive measures to reduce the 

burden of disease that results from, for 

example, smoking, alcohol, obesity and 

falls.

Lincolnshire County Council and 

Lincolnshire’s Clinical Commissioning 

Groups therefore have a collective 

interest in health improvement. The 

expectations for 2013/2014 are that:

Lincolnshire County Council’s Public 

Health Directorate will:

plans to improve health and reduce 

health inequalities, with input from 

Clinical Commissioning Groups.

effective, equitable lifestyle services 

based on local needs and evidence 

of good practice.

evaluated and monitored, and that 

they support CCGs in their role of 

improving health and addressing 

health inequalities.

of Lincolnshire County Council, 

and with the seven district 

councils in Lincolnshire, to embed 

ownership and leadership of health 

improvement across the county.

 

Public Health Support to Clinical Commissioning Groups

Page 84



25

 

issues, and provide staff who can 

give media interviews. 

health - for example, by offering 

training opportunities for staff, and 

through targeted health information 

campaigns.

between Clinical Commissioning 

Groups, local partners and residents 

to integrate and optimise local 

efforts for health improvement and 

disease prevention. 

Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning 

Groups will:

plans to improve health and reduce 

health inequalities.

help maximise their contribution to 

disease prevention – for example, by 

taking every opportunity to address 

smoking, alcohol, and obesity in 

their patients and by optimising 

management of long-term 

conditions.

and lifestyle services are considered 

within the commissioning process, 

and are an integral part of all care 

pathways.

Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing 

Board.

Health Protection

The Health and Social Care Act sets out 

that the Secretary of State for Health 

is responsible for taking steps for the 

purpose of protecting the health of the 

population. Regulation-making powers 

will be used to require local authorities 

(through the Director of Public Health 

on their behalf) to ensure that plans 

are in place to protect the health of the 

local population from threats ranging 

from relatively minor outbreaks to full-

scale emergencies, and to prevent as 

far as possible those threats arising in 

the first place. The scope of this duty 

will include local plans for immunisation 

and screening, as well as the plans 

acute providers and others have in 

place for the prevention and control 

of infection, including those which are 

healthcare associated. 

Thus, as with health improvement, 

Lincolnshire County Council and 

Lincolnshire’s Clinical Commissioning 

Groups have a collective interest in 

ensuring that the arrangements for 

health protection within the county are 

robust. The expectations for 2013/2014 

are that:

Lincolnshire County Council’s Public 

Health Directorate will:

place for responding to the full 

range of potential emergencies – for 

example, pandemic flu, fuel crises, 

flooding, and other major incidents.

adequately tested.

Groups have access to these plans 

and an opportunity to be involved in 

any exercises.

– for example, training, access to 

resources - has been completed. 

are in place to co-ordinate the 

response to emergencies, through 

strategic command and control 

arrangements.

England provide specialist advice 

to Clinical Commissioning Groups 

and constituent practices on health 

protection issues.

national screening programmes 

within Lincolnshire.

Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning 

Groups will:

strategic plans for responding to 

emergencies.

requested to do so.

they have responsibility for include 

appropriate business continuity 

arrangements.

develop business continuity plans 

to cover action in the event of the 

most likely emergencies.

response to emergencies, through 

local command and control 

arrangements.

to assist with the response to 

emergencies, by invoking provider 

business continuity arrangements, 

and through action by constituent 

practices. Staff employed by CCGs 

will be made available to assist in 

the response to emergencies.

PUBLIC HEALTH SUPPORT TO CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS

Page 85



26 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CHAPTER 4

Population Healthcare

The Health and Social Care Act 

establishes Clinical Commissioning 

Groups as the local commissioners of 

NHS services, and gives them a duty to 

continuously improve the effectiveness, 

safety and quality of services. The 

Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing 

Board has been established to identify 

the needs of the population, and 

ensure that these needs are addressed 

through Clinical Commissioning 

Groups, public health and social care 

commissioning plans and activities, and 

the commissioning plans of the NHS 

Commissioning Board.

The expectations for 2013/2014 are 

that:

Lincolnshire County Council’s Public 

Health Directorate will:

advice to Clinical Commissioning 

Groups.

Health and Wellbeing Board.

Strategic Needs Assessment 

(JSNA), to specify the needs of 

the population and ensure that 

this is relevant at the level of each 

Clinical Commissioning Group. 

The production of the JSNA will be 

complemented by a programme of 

targeted needs assessments and 

profiles for each CCG.

as Mosaic, is used to help target 

services appropriately. 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

including review of the evidence 

of effectiveness, and work with 

clinicians.

to named patient funding requests.

interviews on topical healthcare 

issues.

Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning 

Groups will:

specialist public health advice 

into decision making processes, 

in order that public health skills 

and expertise can inform key 

commissioning decisions.

plans are underpinned by the Joint 

Strategic Needs Assessment, and 

support the implementation of the 

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Level of Public Health  
Support to CCGs

Lincolnshire’s public health directorate 

has recently been restructured to 

ensure that we can meet the needs of 

our CCGs for public health support. 

Currently, at a senior level, we employ 

a Director of Public Health and 5.6 

wte consultants in public health, plus 

trainees and staff at a more junior level. 

Three teams will provide public health 

support to Lincolnshire CCGs, i.e. one 

for Lincolnshire West CCG, one for 

Lincolnshire East CCG, and one for 

South Lincolnshire CCG and South 

West Lincolnshire CCG. Each team will 

be led by a Public Health consultant 

who will normally be a member of 

the Governing Body and Executive 

Committee, and input from the team 

will, as a minimum, consist of: 

- Three days per week from Public 

Health consultants

- One day per week from a Public 

Health programme manager

- Share of the work of Public Health 

trainees and other Public Health 

Directorate staff

Recommendations

1. That Lincolnshire County Council’s 

Public Health Directorate and 

the four Clinical Commissioning 

Groups in Lincolnshire cooperate 

fully to improve health, and reduce 

health inequalities, across the 

three domains of Public Health 

practice: health improvement, 

health protection and population 

healthcare.

2. That Lincolnshire’s Clinical 

Commissioning Groups continue 

to play a full part in the 

production of the Joint Strategic 

Needs Assessment, and the 

implementation of the Joint Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy.

3. That around half of the staff time 

of Lincolnshire’s Public Health 

directorate be devoted to work on 

behalf of NHS commissioners.

Page 86



Health Protection

27HEALTH PROTECTION

Health Protection is one of the three 

component parts of Public Health. 

Through this part of our work we seek 

to prevent or reduce the harm caused 

by communicable diseases, minimise 

the health impact of environmental 

hazards, including chemicals, radiation 

and physical threats, and identify early 

disease. We do this in a wide variety of 

ways, and almost always in partnership 

with other parts of the NHS or with 

other agencies. This chapter aims to 

set out some of this work, and make 

recommendations on the way forward 

as these public health responsibilities 

move from the NHS to upper tier local 

authorities.

Communicable Diseases

Currently, responsibility for 

the surveillance and control of 

communicable diseases is split. Much 

of the statutory responsibility lies with 

the Primary Care Trust (PCT), although 

district councils have responsibilities 

under a number of statutes. The 

day-to-day work on surveillance 

and management of single cases 

or outbreaks of infections such a 

salmonellosis, legionella and hepatitis 

is undertaken by staff within the 

Health Protection Agency, supported 

by environmental health officers and 

community nursing staff. Healthcare 

acquired infections, such as MRSA, 

Clostridium difficile and E. coli are a 

shared responsibility between the Public 

Health Team and the organisation 

treating the person affected. This works 

well with NHS providers, but requires 

much more Public Health input with 

primary care and social care providers.

The Director of Public Health has a key 

role in coordinating and leading this 

work. The Department of Health wants 

this coordination role to continue, and 

has set out in guidance that “the local 

leadership of the Director of Public 

Health will play an important part in 

ensuring the local authority and local 

partners are supporting preventative 

services that tackle key threats to the 

health of local people”. One of the key 

areas we need to tackle in Lincolnshire 

is raising awareness of the risks of 

infectious diseases. This would include 

blood-borne and sexually transmitted 

viruses, such as Hepatitis B and C, 

where excellent vaccines are available, 

which are not used as much as they 

should be, and tuberculosis where high 

risk groups, such as migrant workers 

and the homeless present a particular 

risk. 

At present Public Health staff lead the 

development of health protection plans 

for outbreaks of communicable disease 

and the prevention and control of 

infection, and this will continue.

Responsibility for commissioning 

immunisation programmes will 

move from the PCT to the NHS 

Commissioning Board, but the 

Director of Public Health will have a 

role in “supporting, reviewing and 

challenging local plans for, and delivery 

of, immunisation programmes”. This 

will particularly consider inequalities 

in uptake rates and whether the 

programmes are meeting local needs. 

Where we identify issues that need 

addressing we will provide “advice, 

challenge and advocacy”. This will 

utilise leadership skills within public 

health and good relationships with 

clinicians and Clinical Commissioning 

Groups (CCGs). Other channels for 

resolving difficulties will include the 

DPH annual report and reports to the 

Health and Wellbeing Board.

The Public Health Team will continue 

with its role in community infection 

control, and will continue to give advice 

on healthcare acquired infection to 

CCGs.

Page 87



Environmental Issues and 
Hazards

The Public Health Team currently has 

a role in giving advice on the health 

aspects of environmental issues and 

hazards. This is both in terms of 

trying to reduce the health risks in 

the environment through advice to 

planners, the Environment Agency 

and others, and in supporting the 

multiagency response to a wide 

range of incidents. These might be air 

pollution, water pollution including 

drinking water, chemical leaks, fires, 

floods and so on. Most of these require 

multiagency planning and exercising in 

preparation. 

The local authority,  through their 

Director of Public Health will take 

over responsibility for local initiatives 

to reduce the public health impact of 

environmental risks. The position of 

the Public Health Team within the local 

authority gives added opportunities to 

influence environmental issues. 

The future of health input to 

emergency planning and managing 

emergency situations is more complex. 

Many of these require specialist Public 

Health advice, and this will continue 

to be available through the Director 

of Public Health and Public Health 

England. The responsibility for the NHS 

contribution to emergency planning, 

and for preparing NHS plans, will now 

be with the NHS Commissioning Board. 

The interdependence of these two 

contributions is the reason why the 

local Director of Public Health and a 

director from the Local Area Team of 

the Commissioning Board will co-chair 

a new executive level partnership to 

oversee health emergency planning and 

link with the multiagency planning. This 

will be called the Local Health Resilience 

Partnership. 

Screening Programmes

The NHS currently commissions a range 

of screening programmes, which were 

described in some detail in chapter 3 of 

the 2011 Annual Public Health Report. 

These include a number which relate to 

pregnancy and very early childhood – 

screening the mother for Hepatitis B,  

HIV and syphilis; and new-born hearing 

screening; some programmes to pick 

up early cases of cancer – breast, 

cervix and bowel; and some adult 

screening programmes for other 

conditions – diabetic retinopathy and 

abdominal aortic aneurysm. The actual 

programmes to be commissioned across 

the whole country are decided by the 

National Screening Committee, which is 

part of the National Institute of Health 

and Clinical Excellence.

Responsibility for commissioning 

screening programmes is not 

transferring to local authorities as 

part of their public health functions 

but to the NHS Commissioning Board 

supported by staff from Public Health 

England. What is transferring is a role 

for the Director of Public Health to have 

an oversight of screening programmes. 

This role is similar to that with 

immunisation programmes – ensuring 

that programmes meet local needs, 

especially in relation to inequalities, 

advice to commissioners and providers, 

and advocacy. There will be a particular 

role if a serious incident occurs, where 

the Director of Public Health and 

the rest of the Public Health Team 

may need to lead the overall health 

community response to the incident.

Next Steps

These programmes often involve a large 

number of provider organisations. For 

example, cervical screening involves 

the organisation providing the NHS 

register for call and recall; GPs, practice 

nurses, and sexual health services to 

take the test; pathology services; Public 

Health staff and voluntary organisations 

raising awareness; and hospital 

services. Add to this mix an increased 

number of organisations involved in 

commissioning and coordination, and 

it can be seen that these changes lead 

to a considerable level of uncertainty in 

the delivery of some of the most critical 

public health programmes.

This makes the local Public Health 

role critical to the safety and success 

of these programmes. In Lincolnshire 

we are putting in place a team of 

experienced staff, led by Public Health 

consultants to ensure that we deliver 

these outcomes. 

Recommendations

1. That all NHS organisations in 

Lincolnshire ensure that they have 

a high-level executive input to the 

Local Health Resilience Partnership, 

and give serious consideration to its 

decisions and recommendations.

2. That a Health Protection Group is 

established involving commissioners 

and providers, to assist the Director 

of Public Health to give advice, 

challenge and advocacy.

3. That the Local Area Team of 

the NHS Commissioning Board 

continue with the current 

coordination arrangements for each 

of the screening programmes.

28 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CHAPTER 5

 Page 88



Conclusions and Recommendations

29CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

 

This report highlights some really 

beneficial improvements which could 

be made in services for people with 

learning disabilities. This type of health 

needs assessment offers objective 

guidance on the unmet needs of 

the population which can be used 

to reconfigure existing services. Very 

often, meeting these needs now will 

avoid costly requirements in the future, 

as well as improving quality of services, 

and life. 

A similar opportunity exists with the NHS Health Check Programme. For example, 

with a population in this country which is considerably overweight, one difficulty 

is that being overweight becomes the norm, and people may not even realise 

that they need to lose weight. Identifying a need to lose weight now, and giving 

modest help to achieve this, will result in less heart disease, fewer people with 

diabetes and fewer older people with immobility requiring social and healthcare, 

amongst other benefits. You can see that this gives better quality of life for many 

people in Lincolnshire, and better use of the collective resources of organisations in 

the county.

The NHS reforms present us with many opportunities, and the recommendations 

below seek to maximise those opportunities and address the potential risks. I hope 

organisations in Lincolnshire will take these recommendations and use them to 

improve our collective health.

Page 89



1. The Learning Disability Joint 

Commissioning Board should 

ensure joint plans are in place to 

meet the needs of service users, 

including increased demand 

from more adults with learning 

disabilities.

2. Primary care should be encouraged 

to identify and record all people 

with learning disabilities.

3. Preventive healthcare and Public 

Health activities should be 

reviewed to ensure provision across 

Lincolnshire.

4. All services should provide the 

opportunity for adults with 

learning disabilities to access 

healthy lifestyle initiatives and 

services.

5. All GP practices should be 

encouraged to provide annual 

healthchecks for people with a 

learning disability.

6. Frontline staff should receive 

training on learning disability 

awareness in order to develop 

their clinical skills, so that they are 

equipped to meet the health needs 

of this group.

7. Commissioners, Public Health 

Teams and providers should work 

together to increase the number 

of NHS Health Checks offered, 

increase the uptake rate and agree 

a way to cover the service gaps.

8. Commissioners, Public Health 

teams and providers should work 

together to ensure that every 

eligible individual is offered high 

quality life style advice and, when 

appropriate, a referral to a lifestyle 

service.

9. All involved with children should 

raise the profile and implications 

of childhood obesity with local 

communities.

10. Maternity primary care and 

children’s services should support 

mothers to effectively breastfeed

11. We should all promote healthy 

food choices and appropriate 

portion sizes in the home, nursery 

and school.

12. Schools need to increase the 

numbers of children eating healthy 

school meals and reduce those 

eating packed lunches.

13. We all need to promote active 

lifestyles in the home, nursery and 

school.

14. Lincolnshire County Council’s Public 

Health Directorate and the four 

Clinical Commissioning Groups 

in Lincolnshire should cooperate 

fully to improve health and reduce 

health inequalities, across the 

three domains of public health 

practice: health improvement, 

health protection and population 

healthcare.

15. Lincolnshire’s Clinical 

Commissioning Groups should 

continue to play a full part in the 

production of the Joint Strategic 

Needs Assessment, and the 

implementation of the Joint Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy.

16. Around half of the staff time 

of Lincolnshire’s Public Health 

Directorate should be devoted 

to work on behalf of NHS 

commissioners.

17. All NHS organisations in 

Lincolnshire should ensure that 

they have a high-level executive 

input to the Local Health Resilience 

Partnership and give serious 

consideration to its decisions and 

recommendations.

18. A Health Protection Group 

involving commissioners and 

providers should be established to 

assist the Director of Public Health 

with the duties of giving advice, 

challenge and advocacy.

19. The Local Area Team of the NHS 

Commissioning Board should 

continue with the current 

coordination arrangements for 

each of the screening programmes.

30 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

 Page 90



31CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

 Page 91



32CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

NHS Lincolnshire

15-17 The Avenue

Lincoln

LN1 1PD

Tel: 01522 552902

Page 92



 
 
 

 

LINCOLNSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

Open Report on behalf of Glen Garrod, Director of Adult Social Services 

 

Report to 
 
Date: 
 
Subject:  

Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
11 June 2013 
 
Dementia Strategy Update 

 

Summary: 

A partnership approach to the review of the previous Dementia Strategy and the 
development of the new Dementia Strategy has been initiated with the launch of a 
consultation during Dementia Awareness Week, and the introduction of a Dementia Core 
Group to steer the Lincolnshire agenda. Discussions around a Lincolnshire Dementia 
Partnership and a resulting Customer Journey and Pathway have begun, alongside a 
mapping exercise to establish gaps in service and provision. 

 

 

Actions Required:  

For the Board to: 

1. Note the launch of the Consultation  

2. Comment on the attached discussion document 

3. Agree the approach to partnership working 
 
 

 
1. Background 

 
The Lincolnshire Joint Commissioning Strategy for Dementia Care 2010 – 2014 
was published in June 2010. As part of the continued partnership work between 
Lincolnshire County Council and the four Lincolnshire CCGs it was decided that 
the current strategy would be reviewed and a new strategy agreed that supported 
the national drivers, and considerable national agenda for change and 
improvement, alongside local drivers and needs. 
 

Agenda Item 10.1

Page 93



As part of the review, a consultation has begun that will take place between 20 
May and 19 July 2013. This consultation includes a questionnaire (Appendix A) 
that examines the impact of the current strategy, asks about current services and 
pathways, and seeks information about service gaps and improvement 
opportunities. The consultation will also include a number of events held around 
the County to discuss local issues in more depth and to establish a robust picture 
of current thoughts and future thinking around dementia in Lincolnshire. 
 
Alongside the work around the consultation, we have also sought to begin a local 
'conversation' about dementia. This begun at the Dementia Summit held in 
February 2013, and has continued through the establishment of a Dementia Core 
Group with members from CCGs, Health providers, Public Health, the Third sector 
and Adult Care. This group has been formed to help shape the future direction of 
dementia services across Lincolnshire, by sharing priorities, opportunities, ideas 
and risks. A partnership approach to taking forward the dementia partnership in 
Lincolnshire is being sought and the attached discussion paper on a Lincolnshire 
Dementia Partnership (Appendix B) has been shared with the group in order to 
agree the cornerstones of a partnership approach in terms of shared principles, 
outcomes and actions. 
 
At the heart of the current discussions is an agreed journey and pathway for 
dementia in Lincolnshire. The journey (based on national best practise models) 
lays out six phases of a pathway, and we have sought to mirror all discussions 
around dementia around these phases – for example, the current consultation is 
constructed around the phases. 
 

 
 
Although a new strategy is clearly needed for the County, we do not want to wait 
until we have a new document before making changes. The Dementia Core Group 
is currently analysing potential 'quick wins' and is sharing knowledge in order to 
deliver improvements. We are also analysing where potential pilot work can begin 
in order to demonstrate the potential for change and improvement through 
adoption of a new journey and pathway 
 
 

Page 94



 
2. Conclusion 

 
It is hoped that through both the Dementia Core Group and the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, agreement to this partnership approach; the shared principles, 
outcomes and actions; and the dementia journey and pathway can be achieved. 
Agreement at this level will allow us to proceed with a joined up approach to 
strategy, commissioning and development that will deliver Lincolnshire an 
improved and effective system to support people affected by dementia. 

 
   
3. Consultation 
  

A Public Consultation has begun and ruins from 20 May to 19 July 2013. 
 
4. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Consultation Paper 

Appendix B Lincolnshire Dementia Partnership Discussion Paper 

 
 
5. Background Papers 
 
 No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 

were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

This report was written by Richard Collins who can be contacted on 01522 554012 
or richard.collins@lincolnshire.gov.uk  

Page 95



Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

Lincolnshire Joint Strategy for Dementia 2010-2014 Refresh 

Consultation Questionnaire 

The aim of this questionnaire is to help improve the experience of people living with 

dementia in Lincolnshire.   

It may be completed by anyone who has experience of or an interest in dementia. 

You may be living with dementia yourself, or living with dementia by caring for a 

loved one. You might be a professional in the field of health or social care, or 

working for a care provider or the voluntary sector. You may simply have an interest 

in promoting better dementia services in the county.        

The first section asks questions about the impact of the current Dementia strategy, 

and your views about priorities for the future. 

The sections after that ask questions about your own experiences, using the 

Dementia Journey below as a guide. This deepens our understanding of what is 

working and helps identify priorities for improvement.  

There are opportunities throughout for you to give your ideas.   

We recognise that this is a personal and sensitive subject, and ask you to respond in 

a way that is right for you.  We would like to thank you in advance for your time and 

help. 

The Dementia Journey1 

 

                                                             
1
 The Dementia Journey is designed by Dementia Partnerships UK 

• When memory or changing behaviour problems have prompted 

me, my family or carer to seek helpPhase 1

• Learning that the condition is DementiaPhase 2

• Learning more about the disease, how to manage, options for 

treatment & care, and support for me & my family & carersPhase 3

• Getting the right help at the right time to live with Dementia, 

prevent crisis and manage togetherPhase 4

• Managing at more difficult times, including if possible to live at 

homePhase 5

• Receiving care, compassion, and support at the end of lifePhase 6

Page 97



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

 

 
 

Q1. How aware are you of the current Joint Lincolnshire Dementia Strategy? 

 

 Yes/ No/ 
Don't Know 

I am not aware of it   

I am aware of it   

Has it worked?  

 

Q.2 Do you think attitudes and awareness towards people living with dementia have 

changed in the last three years, since the launch of the National Dementia Strategy 

and Lincolnshire's Joint Dementia Strategy?  

 

Thinking about+ Yes/ No / 
Don't Know 

Healthcare professionals (e.g. GP, nurse)  

Social workers  

Care providers  

Voluntary organisations  

Shops, banks, supermarkets   

Employers  

Friends  

General public   

Any other comment  – please explain 
 
 
 

 

 

Q3.   What is most important to help improve attitudes and awareness towards 

people living with dementia (up to five priorities)? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A refreshed strategy for 

Lincolnshire 

Page 98



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

Q4. Are you aware of some of the following national initiatives in Lincolnshire from 

the Prime Ministers Challenge?  

 

Tick all that apply Yes/ No Involved Would like to 
know more or 
be involved 

Dementia Action Alliance    

Dementia Friendly Communities    

Dementia Friends    

Dementia Champions    

 

Q5.  Thinking about the impact of the Joint Dementia Strategy over the last three 

years, has the experience of people living with dementia in Lincolnshire improved?  

  

What people said was important in 2010 Rate 1- 5 where 

5 is most 

improved; 1 is 

least improved 

and 0 is 'Don't 

know' 

People with dementia and carers being at the heart of 
everything 

 

Easy access to accurate and up to date information  

Early diagnosis and swift follow up  

Easy to access medication and monitoring   

Identifying carers and support for carers  

Easy to access short breaks and respite  

Supportive, enjoyable social and community services  

Flexible, reliable and responsive care at home   

Stimulating and caring residential care  

Active respectful care in hospital and for end of life  

 

Q.6 Thinking about what needs to be achieved in the next three years, how 

important do you think are the following? 

Thinking about+ Rate how 
important this is 
on a scale of 1-5 
where 5 is most 
important and 1 
is least 

Joined up care and support from health, social care and the 
voluntary sector   

 

Earlier diagnosis, increased levels of diagnosis  

More support after diagnosis for people and carers living with 
dementia  

 

Page 99



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

Dementia friendly communities  

Improving skills of families to understand and manage living with 
dementia 

 

Reliable, personalised support for people to live well at home  

Knowledgeable, skilful staff working in all sectors  

Reduced use of anti-psychotic medication (e.g. medication to 
manage behaviour) 

 

All service providers signed up to deliver the outcomes of the 
National Dementia Strategy  

 

Preventing unnecessary hospital admissions and delayed 
discharge 

 

Effective support for families when things get difficult  

Ensuring the most effective use of current spending on 
dementia 

 

The best possible care at the end of life for the person and carer   

Other priorities or comments (please specify) 
 
 
 
 

 

 

The next sections ask about your experience of getting help and 

support, and help us understand what is working well at present, and 

what requires improvement.  

  

Page 100



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

 

 Q.7  When you or someone you know began to shows signs of changing behaviour 

or memory problems, where did you go for information or help? Please tick all that 

apply. 

Source of help Yes/ No Rate helpfulness 
on a scale of 1-5 
where 5 is most 
helpful and 1 is 
least 

Family   

GP   

Nurse   

Pharmacist   

Voluntary organisation (name):   

Employer   

Friend   

Internet Website (name)   

Other – please explain 
 
 
 

  

 

Q.8   What other support would have helped ? Please list up to five priorities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 101



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

 

Q.9   Have you or a loved one been given a diagnosis of dementia? 

Yes No Not sure 

   

 

Q.10   If yes, were you given information to help manage the present and plan for the 

future?  Please tick all that apply. 

Thinking about+ Yes/ No Rate helpfulness on 
a scale of 1-5 where 5 
is most helpful  

Understanding dementia and how it might 
affect you; learning to manage its symptoms 

  

Appointments just for you as the carer    

Available treatment options   

Information about local help available   

National helplines and support   

Access to help for family carers   

Access to counselling   

Support groups    

Lincolnshire's online information and advice 
service www.mychoicemycare.org.uk 

  

Please tell us about your experience 
 
 

  

 

Q.11   What would have helped most after a diagnosis? Please tell us your priorities 

(up to five). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 102



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

 

Q.12   Have you had an assessment of your needs and a care plan? If so, were any 

of the following agencies involved? Tick all that apply. 

Agency Yes/ No Rate helpfulness 
on a scale of 1-5 
where 5 is most 
helpful 

GP   

Lincolnshire Foundation Partnership Trust   

Psychologist   

Occupational Therapist (OT)   

Neurology   

Old age physician   

Lincolnshire County Council Adult Services   

Carers Team   

Voluntary organisation   

Were your needs as a carer taken into account?  
 
 
 

  

 

Q.13   What support have you and your family been offered to live with dementia? 

Tick all that apply. 

Thinking about+ Yes/ No Rate helpfulness 
on a scale of 1-5 
where 5 is most 
helpful 

Understanding more about dementia, its impact 
and managing its symptoms 

  

Ongoing health appointments and support   

A carer's assessment and carers emergency plan   

Access to counselling   

Dementia Awareness or Carers Education 
courses for families 

  

Help for the patient to manage memory loss   

Information about support groups    

Social care assessment   

Help with early onset dementia (under 65)   

Help if you have a learning disability and 
dementia 

  

Planning care for the future   

What to do in a crisis   

Page 103



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

Information about managing money, lasting 
power of attorney & wills 

  

Adapting the home to make it more dementia 
friendly 

  

Housing options for the future   

No information and help   

Other (please specify) 
 
 

  

 

Q.14   What are your top five priorities to help families learn more about managing 

living with dementia and to plan for the future?   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 104



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

 

Q.15   Thinking about living day to day with dementia, what helps you and your 

family to live as well as possible with the condition?  Tick all that apply 

Thinking about+ Yes/ No/ 
Don't 
Know 

Rate helpfulness on a 
scale of 1-5 where 5 is 
most helpful 

Easy to contact knowledgeable help and support   

Equipment, telecare and telehealth   

Local support group    

Supportive and enjoyable social and community 
activities 

  

Day service   

More personalised day time support (please 
specify) 

  

Help to maintain paid employment   

Accessible transport   

Support of family & friends   

Activities and support appropriate for someone 
with early onset dementia (under 65) 

  

Help if you have a learning disability and dementia   

Personal budget, direct payments or personal 
assistant 

  

Accessible short breaks and respite for carers   

Help with housework, shopping or other tasks   

Home care or other paid support in the home   

Other (please specify) 
 
 

  

 

Q.16   How well do you feel you are managing day to day, living with dementia? Tick 

all that apply. 

Thinking about+ Yes/ No 

We are managing day to day for now  

We are managing day to day but would like more help  

Some days are very difficult but I have support  

Some days are very difficult and I would like more support  

We feel well supported  

We feel isolated  

We are struggling to cope right now  

We know how to find out about getting more help  

Other (please specify) 
 

 

Page 105



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

 

Q.17 How aware are you of what telecare can do to help people with dementia? 

 Yes/No 

I am aware of how telecare can help people with dementia  

I know how to find about telecare  

I don't know how it can help people with dementia  

For more information see  www.lincstelecare.co.uk or call the 
Lincolnshire County Council Customer Service Centre 01522 
782155 

 

 

Q.18   What improvements would most help you and your family to live with 

dementia as well as possible in your part of Lincolnshire?  Please list up to five. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Q.19   What improvements would you most like to see to help meet your needs as a 

family carer, to help you manage caring for someone with dementia? Please list up 

to five.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 106



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

Q.20   If a break from caring or household tasks is helpful to you, what sort of break 

do you most value? Please tick all that apply.  

What sort of break is most helpful 
to you? 

Do you 
receive this 
now?  
Yes/ No 

Can you 
get this 
in your 
area? 
Yes/ No 

Rate helpful-
ness on a 
scale of 1-5 
where 5 is 
most helpful 

A sitting service for a few hours at 
home in the day or evening 

   

Care in your home     

Planned respite in a care home so 
you can go on holiday 

   

Help with household tasks/ garden 
that helps take the pressure off and 
allows time to make memories with a 
loved one 

   

Flexible, personalised & consistent 
support to suit the needs of your 
family 

   

Regular breaks that let you plan and 
maintain activities & friendships 

   

Support for your loved one out and 
about doing things that they enjoy 

   

Doing enjoyable things together 
 

   

Other (please specify 
 
 
 
 

   

 

  

Page 107



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

 

Q.21   When things get harder, do you know where to go for information, advice, 

guidance or support? Tick all that apply. 

 Yes/ No Rank in order of 
helpfulness 1-5 
where 5 is most 
helpful 

No   

Family   

GP   

Community Nurse   

Carers Team or Carers Support   

Support group (name)   

Lincolnshire Partnership Foundation Trust   

Voluntary organisation (name)   

Friend   

Lincolnshire County Council Adult Services   

Website (name)   

Pharmacist   

Palliative Care   

Other – please explain 
 
 
 

  

 

Q.22   What would help you most to manage difficult times at home? Please tick all 

that apply.   

Thinking about+ Yes/ No Rank in order of 
helpfulness 1-5 
where 5 is most 
helpful 

Community Nurse  or GP   

Advice and information about managing 
challenging behaviour  

  

A single point of contact I know and trust   

Lincolnshire Partnership Foundation Trust   

Support for you as a carer (please specify)   

Support group (name)   

Regular breaks for you as a carer   

Adult Social Care assessment and support   

Telecare and equipment   

Home care support   

Day centre or other support in the community   

Page 108



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

What to do in a crisis   

Advice and information about housing options 
and residential or nursing care 

  

Other – please explain 
 
 
 

  

 

Q23.  If you or a loved one with dementia has had experience of going to hospital, 

what help - prior to admission, or on discharge - do you consider might have helped 

prevent or reduce the length of stay in hospital? 

 Tick any 
that 
apply 

Helped/ 
Would help/ 
Didn't help 

Not 
aware 
of this 

This Is Me scheme    

Message in a bottle scheme    

Carers emergency response service    

More intensive home care    

Telecare & equipment    

Falls clinic advice    

Respite care/ break for carer    

Reablement    

Staff skilled in dementia nursing    

Family liaison in hospital    

Help and support when you come home 
from hospital 

   

Discharge planning with carer as equal 
partner and carer needs taken into account 

   

Other (please specify) 
 
 

   

 

Q.24   What is most important to you about care in hospital for a patient with 

dementia? Please list up to five things.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 109



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

 

These are delicate questions, and if you are affected by them, there are helplines 

that are available at the end of this questionnaire. 

Q.25   What is most important to you about making decisions around end of life 

care? Please identify up to five aspects. 

(for example advance care planning, or being surrounded by loved ones) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Are you aware of  'The Patient's Journey' – an End of Life Care Pathway? 
Yes/ No 

 

Q.26   What is important to you as the carer of a loved one at the end of their life, to 

help you manage? Please identify up to five points. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Q.27   If there are any further comments you wish to make, please do so here:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 110



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

Thank you very much for taking the time to complete this questionnaire. Your 

contribution will help improve support for people living with dementia. 

Please fill in the below to help us understand the feedback we receive. Personal 

contact details are optional. 

Please indicate which stage you, or the person you care for, feel you are at in the 

Dementia Journey (or which stage you provide care at). Please tick below: 

 

About me (please tick all that apply):  

I have dementia  

I care for a loved one with dementia  

I am a health professional. Please state which sector...  

I am a social work/ social care professional  

I am a care provider    

I work for, or support a voluntary organisation   

I am none of the above, but I am a Lincolnshire resident   

Other (please state)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Phase 1

Seeking help

Phase 2                                     

Learning that the condition is Dementia

Phase 3

Learning more and planning for the 

future

Phase 4

Living well with Dementia 

Phase 5

Managing  at  more dificult times

Phase 6

At the end of life

Page 111



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

Monitoring information  

Where in Lincolnshire do you live?  

Postcode (first part only)  

 

Gender  

Male H Female H  

Are you married or in a civil partnership Yes H No H  

Age 16-24 H 25-29 H 30-34 H 35-39 H 40-44 H 45-49 H 50-54 H 55-59 H 60-64 H 

65+ H Prefer not to say H  

How would you describe your national identity?  

English H Welsh H Scottish H Northern Irish H  

British H Other H Prefer not to say H  

What is your ethnicity?  

Ethnic origin categories are not about nationality, place of birth or citizenship. They 

are about the group to which you as an individual perceive you belong. Please 

indicate your ethnic origin by ticking the appropriate box  

White English H Welsh H Scottish H Northern Irish H  

Irish H Gypsy or Irish Traveller H Other White background H  

Mixed/multiple ethnic groups  

White and Black Caribbean H White and Black African H  

White and Asian H Any other mixed background H  

Asian/Asian British  

Indian H Pakistani H  

Bangladeshi H Chinese H  

Any other Asian background H  

Black/ African/ Caribbean/ Black British  

African H Caribbean H  

Any other Black/African/Caribbean backgroundH  

Other ethnic group  

Page 112



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

Arab H Any other ethnic group H  

Prefer not to say H  

 

Do you consider yourself to be disabled? Yes H No H Prefer not to say H  

What is your sexual orientation?  

Heterosexual/straight H Gay woman/lesbian H  

Gay man H Bisexual H Other H Prefer not to say H  

What is your religion or belief?  

No religion H Buddhist H Christian H  

Hindu H Jewish H Muslim H  

Sikh H Any other religion H Prefer not to say H  

Do you have caring responsibilities? If yes please tick all that apply  

None H  

Primary carer of a child/children (under 18) H Primary carer of disabled child/children 

H  

Primary carer of disabled adult (18 and over) H Primary carer of older person (65+) 

H  

Secondary carer H Prefer not to say H 

 

Helplines 

If you are affected by any of the issues raised in this questionnaire and would 

like to talk to someone who can help: 

Alzheimers Society Lincolnshire  01522 692681 (Mon-Fri 10-4) 

Alzheimers Society UK Helpline 0300 2221122 (Mon-Fri 9-5; Weekend 10-4) 

Admiral Nursing Direct UK 0845 2579406 (Tues & Thurs 11-8.45 and Sat 10-1) 

Lincolnshire Carers Team 01522 782224 (Mon-Fri 8-6) 

 

 

Page 113



V.05 20 May 13 Evening 

 

Alternative Formats 

The information contained in this document can also be provided in other languages 

as well as other formats including large print, please request on the number below. 

 

Further information about this consultation 

If you have any further questions or would like to talk to someone about this 

consultation please contact  Paul.Herniman@lincolnshire.gov.uk on 01522 554219.  

Page 114



Appendix B 

 

The Lincolnshire Dementia Partnership 

The Vision 

Within Lincolnshire we want to ensure people with dementia and their families work 

with the statutory sector, third sector organisations and service providers because 

we know that working together is more effective. We will pursue a single unified 

approach to supporting people with dementia throughout a journey and pathway that 

is made as positive as possible. This journey will be assisted by a network of support 

and opportunities that encourage self-support and independence, and provides the 

right support at the right time.  

We believe that this is best achieved by working in a balanced partnership between 

people, families, professionals, providers and the public, where everyone has a role 

and where everyone provides all the support that they can, at the right point within a 

person’s journey. 

Our vision moves us away from traditional services and a dependence on Adult 

Social Care and Health services, to a preventative model that is based on individual 

needs, wellbeing and choice. 

The Principles 

In order to enable a partnership to function appropriately, a set of agreed principles 

are needed. Our principles are: 

• People will live well with dementia in Lincolnshire 

• People will remain at home for as long as possible 

• We will invest in prevention and intervention 

• We will undertake joint commissioning and develop pooled budgets 

• We will provide a positive journey and a pathway to navigate that journey 

• We will create a sustainable network of services 

• We will work together in a trusting, equal partnership 

• We will reflect the nature and needs of communities in Lincolnshire 

The Journey 

We think that we need a pathway that links to the dementia journey that has been 

developed by Dementia Partnerships UK– laid out in figure 1 below – that creates 

logical steps that are supportive, responsive and effective. 

Page 115



Richard Collins 

Lincolnshire County Council 

February 2013 Page 2 

 

Figure 1 – The Dementia Journey 

Phase 1 When memory problems have prompted 

me and/or my carer/family to seek help 

 

  

Phase 2 Learning that the condition is dementia 

 

 

  

Phase 3 Learning more about the disease, how to 

manage, options for treatment and care, 

and support for me and my carers/families 

  

Phase 4 Getting the right help at the right time to 

live well with dementia, prevent crisis, 

and manage together 

  

Phase 5 Managing at more difficult times, 

including if possible to manage at home 

 

  

Phase 6 Receiving care, compassion and support 

at the end of life 

 

 

http://www.dementiapartnerships.org.uk/commissioning/models-of-care/the-dementia-journey/ 

We believe that these phases are understood by people living with dementia, and 

represent the appropriate points of providing intervention and support. 

The Pathway 

We see the pathway for people with dementia as being positive, supportive and built 

on the quality of the relationships we make. Our pathway supports health and well-

being prior to a diagnosis of dementia through targeted information, advice and 

awareness promotion. We see early identification and diagnosis as essential, and 

backed by a network of support and reablement that will empower people to remain 

independent, encourage self-support and enable people and their families to care for 

themselves. We believe that this is possible through the right investment in services 

and opportunities, appropriate care planning, and the right culture and ethos to care 

and support that respects and nurtures individuals and their relationships. We know 

Page 116



Richard Collins 

Lincolnshire County Council 

February 2013 Page 3 

 

that targeted intervention and crisis support will enable people to remain at home 

with less support for longer. We also know that the right support will always be 

needed at the right time, and we believe in the availability of appropriate, high quality 

services that are available when they are needed. Our pathway ensures that the best 

services are in place at the end of life, and that people are able to choose where 

they die. 

Figure 2 – The Dementia Pathway 

 

The Partnership 

We know that there is only one sustainable way that we can achieve our vision for 

dementia, and that is by working together. This cannot be achieved by one 

organisation alone, but if we combine resources, efforts, expertise and passion then 

we can bring about a new way to enable people to live well with dementia in 

Lincolnshire 

Figure 3 – The Lincolnshire Dementia Partnership 

 

Page 117



Richard Collins 

Lincolnshire County Council 

February 2013 Page 4 

 

The Outcomes 

In order to secure a longstanding partnership and to secure a positive result, we 

agree to a joint set of outcomes: 

• Improved public awareness of dementia 

• Improved identification and early diagnosis 

• Improvement in the quality of diagnosis 

• Improved quality of care in hospitals and in the community 

• A reduction in the use of anti-psychotic medication 

• More people supported away from Adult Social care and Health Services 

• Improved and accessible information and to enable people with dementia and 

carers to plan, manage and live well with dementia 

• Reduction in long term care admissions 

• Reduction in hospital admissions due to dementia 

• Improved customer journey and experience 

• Improved support for families/carers that helps preserve relationships 

• Improved outcomes at End of Life 

• Improved access to alternative care pathways 

• Involve people throughout  

• Increase self-management 

The Actions 

In order to deliver these outcomes, we will undertake a number of actions: 

• Develop and agree a new dementia Strategy for Lincolnshire in line with the 

national dementia strategy and local needs 

• Develop an action plan to implement the strategy 

• Develop a dementia Programme and Programme Board 

• Develop a dementia Support Network 

• Provision of Intervention and Crisis Support 

• Develop integrated approaches to community working for dementia and 

throughout the journey 

• Further develop Dementia Friendly Communities 

• Increase the range and diversity of support in consultation with people 

affected by dementia 

Page 118



Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board – Forward plan items 

 

June 2013_mw Page 1 

 

Meeting date Decision/Authorisation item Discussion item Information item 

24
th

 September 2013 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment – 

Discharge of HWB statutory 

functions – 

David Stacey, Programme Manager 

 

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

– Baseline dashboard of items 

David Stacey, Programme Manager 

 

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

Implementation Framework 

David Stacey, Programme Manager 

-  

Tobacco Control – 

 5 year plan 

Ros Watson, Smokefree Lincs 

Alliance 

 

NHS to Social care funding – 

 update report 

Glen Garrod, Director, Adult care-  

10
th

 December 2013  

 

 

  

25
th

 March 2014  

 

 

  

10
th

 June 2014  

 

 

  

 

A
genda Item

 11.

P
age 119



P
age 120

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8.1 Health and Wellbeing Boards Terms of Reference (TOR) and Operating Procedures
	8.1 Appendix A Terms-of-Reference-Board(final code of conduct) 110613 (8 1A)
	8.1 Appendix B HWB Standard Agenda Draft Process 110613 (8 1B)
	8.1 Appendix C HWB Role  Responsibilities 110613 (8 1C)
	8.1 Appendix D

	8.2 Disabled Children's Charter
	8.2 Appendix A Disabled Children's Charter
	8.2  Appendix B Why sign the disabled children's charter for health and wellbeing boards

	9.1 Health and Wellbeing Board - Development Tool
	9.1 Appendix A Copy of Development tool for Health  Wellbeing Boards 110613 (9 1A)
	9.1 Appendix B Development Tool

	9.2 Lincolnshire Public Health Annual Report 2012
	9.2Appendix A

	10.1 Dementia Strategy Update
	10.1 Appendix A Dementia Consultation Final v1 0
	10.1 Appendix B Lincolnshire Dementia Partnership

	11. Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board - Forward Plan Items

